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With a family perspective, we are committed to delivering quality and professional social services to enhance the well-
being of families and individuals in Hong Kong and to foster a caring community.

To realize this mission,

@ We support the unity and nurturing functions of families.

© We respect the rights, dignity and potential of individuals.

© We uphold the principle of confidentiality.

© We empower families and individuals to meet challenges.

© We adopt an integrated approach to provide a wide range of family services by competent and committed staff.
© We strive to enhance service effectiveness through staff development and research.

© We pioneer service projects to meet the changing needs of the Hong Kong society.

@ We advocate a comprehensive public policy for families.
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Our Past, Present and Future

As a charitable non-governmental organization concerned with the well-being of families, the Hong Kong Family Welfare
Society, known originally as the Social Service Centre of the Churches when established in 1938, became an independent
agency on 1% January, 1949. This was due to the initiative of the Rt. Rev. R. O. Hall and the expert assistance of Miss Katherine
Scott-Moncrieff, a well-known social worker from the United Kingdom. Backed by the interest and concern of a group of
people of different denominations, the foundation of the Society was put in place with the basic aim of helping families in
distress by means of casework. In the early days, just after World War II, the Society helped with relief work for all needy
people, including those who had been released from the concentration camps set up during the occupation.

The Society has always played a leading role in service innovation. Apart from remedial work, we also focus on the prevention
of family problems, and thus were a pioneer in Family Life Education in 1971, and we also offer Home Help and School
Social Work Service and Foster Care Service. To help service user with special need, we established the Clinical Psychological
Service in 1979. Since 1986, we have also initiated a variety of experimental and innovative services to meet new arising needs,
such as Mental Health group work service, “Drop-in” for isolated families, multiple support for Single Parents, Therapeutic
Groups for Abusive Families, and Emergency Foster Care etc. Besides, a number of professional practice publications have
been produced and many research studies have been undertaken.

Experiencing rapid political, social and economic changes in the 1990’s, the Society called for a concerted effort to develop
services to enhance the capacity of families. In 1998, we started providing specialized intervention for new arrivals from
China. While adapting well to the life in Hong Kong, users are trained to become “Ambassadors” to help disadvantaged
people and contributed to the community. In 2005, the Society restructured its internal resources to set up 6 Integrated
Family Service Centres to provide accessible, one-stop services to strengthen families. At these centres, we set up “Family
Careline” and “Family Oasis Family Health Redevelopment Project” to ease the pressure on people from different walks of
life. Apart from that, we provided Family Volunteer Service, Family Aide Service, Employee Assistant Programme, Wellness
Programme and Family Mediation Service etc. In view of the rising incidence of domestic violence, the Society introduced an
“Alternative to Violence Project” from the West, which advocated peaceful conflict resolution, and volunteers were trained
to become “Ambassadors” responsible for promoting peace in the community. Community-based Mediation Education was
also introduced to facilitate peaceful conflict resolution. The Society also collaborated with Corporates and individuals to
facilitate ethnic minorities integration to the community and build up harmonious community.

To care for the wellness development of the youth and their families, the Society set up an Integrated Children and Youth
Service Centre in the past decade, with the emphasis on developing the potential of youth through art activities. In order
to support youth to face issues concerning employment, the Society established the “Life-goal planning” service aiming to
enhance the competence and to equip the youth in planning their future and career development. Furthermore, the Society
has also expanded its “Peer Mediation Project” to schools to foster a peaceful campus. In view of the speedy development
of internet culture nowadays, the Society has launched Net Education programmes to prevent net addiction problems and to
raise public concern on Cyber-Bullying issue, and also provide internet service and related counselling to support deprived
children. Under the integrated education, the Society extended the services for students with Special Education Needs (SEN),
enabling them to integrate in school life and actualize their potentials.

The rapidly ageing population is a major concern in Hong Kong. The Society provides support services to the elders and
their carers, and reforms our home based service model to a spectrum of Comprehensive Elderly and Community Support
Services. To ensure elders a sense of belonging, security and worthiness, the Society offering a variety of services, including
pain control, and rehabilitation education. Also, we set up Health Care Centres in island and self-financed service “Viva” in
the town to provide flexible day care and rehabilitation programmes for the frail elders. The Society will continue its solid
effort in collaboration with the public and private partners,
set up “Elders and Caregivers Mental Health Service” to
offer more intensive support for family carers and the needy
elders to enjoy and to live their healthy golden years in
the community.

Based on the “Family Perspective” serving Hong Kong over
60 years, our staff will continue to deliver quality services
to the public with our passion. We will also continuously
enhance our monitoring system to ensure quality service
of our staff to serve families and the community.
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Director's Remarks

The changing population structure and family structure, the pressure from the social and economic environment, and the challenges
in livelihood have impact on the well-being of families and individuals. Hong Kong Family Welfare Society continues to develop our
core services to meet these ever-changing needs. We are also committed to our mission and launch innovative services to meet the
service gaps. This year, two new service centres were established, namely “Parent-child Contact Centre” and “Financial Education
Centre”, to pilot new initiatives to support families and those in need.

We adopt a “child-focus” approach in the development and implementation of our Family Service as a whole. Apart from the variety
of service provided through our Integrated Family Service Centres, we have launched new initiatives along this line, including
“CareNet for the Children @ Kindergarten Social Work Service Project”, “Sweet Home Sweet Child - Child Parent Relationship
Enhancement Project” and “Family in crisis Support Pilot Project” etc. In response to the upsurge of divorce rate in Hong Kong,
the Society has been dedicated to develop specialized services for divorce families including “Family Mediation Service”, “Healthy
Divorced Men Project”, “A Beam of Hope - Pilot Project on ‘Child-focused’ Parenting Coordination and Co-parenting Services
for Divorced Families”, etc. Moreover, we organized a “Child-Focused” Co-parenting Seminar in June 2016 and we collaborated
with the Chinese University of Hong Kong to release the research report, “The relationship of post-divorce parental alliance and
children's well-being in Hong Kong”. We engaged social workers, legal practitioners and relevant professionals to explore and to
promote the concept of child-focused co-parenting for the well-being of children. In September 2016, we piloted the “Children
Contact Service” with support from the Social Welfare Department. Our Parent-child Contact Centre was set up for this service and
provides professional Supervised Children Contact/Exchange Services for separated/divorced parents and their children so that the
non-residential parents could maintain stable contacts with their children and to sustain or rebuild their relationship. The ultimate
goal is to facilitate the healthy development of the children.

For Children and Youth Service, our School Social Work Service and Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre are major platforms
that we tailored a series of services to serve the changing needs of young people. We have further developed services in four major
areas: “Adolescent Mental Health Service”, “Peaceful Conflict Resolution Services”, “Life Goal Planning Service”, and “Service for
Special Education Need (SEN)”. This is a rewarding year for our “Hang Seng — HKFWS Youth Mediation Scheme” that received
several local and international awards including the “Outstanding Partnership Project Award” in Caring Company Scheme 2016/17
and “Gold Award (corporate social responsibility category)” in the 12th China Golden Awards for Excellence in Public Relations
(Awards) of the China International Public Relations Association (CIPRA), etc.

In view of the problems arisen from improper financial management among youth and families, the Society has provided preventive
service and education to them in this respect. Last year, we set up the “Financial Education Centre” with a distinctive image and
services to foster young people with adequate knowledge and habits in financial management. The centre also piloted a five-year
project, “S-QUBE - Youth Financial Empowerment Project” sponsored by the HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity Programme to promote
financial literacy among young people. Through this project, we introduced the financial social work model from the United States
and, taking into the local situation, to provide systematic professional training for social workers. Besides, we organized different
experiential activities and made use of social media to help young people develop positive financial values.

We have been driven by the direction of “ageing in place” in serving the elderly and strengthening carers’ support. Apart from providing
the Integrated Home Care Service, Enhanced Home and Community Care Service, Neighbourhood Senior Citizen Centre and our
self-financed Viva to support the elderly to stay in the community, we have developed the “Elders and Caregivers Mental Health
Service” for prevention and intervention. These new initiatives included the “Dementia Care Planning Service” to support caregivers
in facing their challenges and helping them to set up care goals and plans systematically, and the “Similey Activation Project” to
improve emotional well-being of frail elders. Besides, the Society has joined the “Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project”
in supporting the elderly to establish self-management habits and gain a better understanding on their health conditions through an
electronic platform. We also took part in the “Jockey Club Good Hand Easy Match Alliance” to provide one-stop matching services
for the elderly, including home care, escort service, rehabilitation trainings and cleaning services, etc.

We continued to organize the “Family Month” in May with the themes “Family Mental Health” and “Peace in Family”. A series
of programmes were provided in different districts to enhance public awareness and concern towards family well-being. We also
collaborated with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University to launch the first territory-wide Family Well-being Survey with the aims
to scrutinizing the well-being of families and providing insights for service and policy development.

The Society concerns about issues related to families and social well-being. We have contributed our views and made submission to
relevant government departments and organizations on different subjects including “A Study on Family Impact Assessment in Hong
Kong: A Checklist Approach”, “Sexual Offences Involving Children and Persons with Mental Impairment”, "Proposed Arrangement
with the Mainland on Reciprocal Recognition and Enforcement of Judgments on Matrimonial and Related Matters", “Elderly Services
Programme Plan Consensus Building Stages” and “Retirement Protection Forging Ahead”, etc.

This is a fruitful year with sustainable service development and expansion. We are grateful to all colleagues for their dedicated
efforts and perseverance that have contributed to the success. We are also indebted to the Government, The Community Chest of
Hong Kong, charity organizations, corporations, education institutes etc. for their support. In spite of the changing environment with
uncertainties and challenges, the Society will uphold our family perspective and our passion in providing quality and innovative

services for families and those in need, and to foster hope and a caring community.

Amarantha Yip (Ms.)

Executive Director

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
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Professional Support For Agency Development
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Our Society has set up different professional support teams
to facilitate the sustainable development of our services and
agency as a whole. To enhance service quality and effectiveness,
the Staff Development Unit is responsible for planning and
implementation of staff development programmes and related
policy issues. Our 4 Social Work Consultants, working as a
team, have been actively providing support to our service units
in various aspects, including risk management and service
development. In order to provide appropriate service to our
service users, the Service Audit Team continuously reviews our
services to ensure their quality meeting professional standards.
Moreover, our Publicity and Liaison Team liaises with the
media to promote our services and professional image and
organize activities for different stakeholders and the needy
groups in the community.

BB ERE TRERAAT
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Mr. Kee Chi Hing shared his views at the workshop “Developing New Service Initiatives to Meet Society's Needs”



FEE TEEHEURRBIFREIE , TEHERMMANES LERRHEREMVEE
Colleagues presented their own projects and received comments from the Director and the trainer in “From Project
Proposal to Project Management”

FEE THEHE - PEZERER/VE, TRUBNFELERBENER
Colleagues exchanged views on the pilot service project in Parent-child Contact Centre in “Peer Learning and Practice
Group on Co-parenting - Phase 3”
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Staff Development and Training
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Dr. Anita Chiu led the participants to demonstrate Satir
Model at the workshop “Key to Parent Work”

The Society is committed to enhancing staff’s competences, acumen
towards societal needs, passions for serving and professionalism
to meet the changing societal needs. Staff Development Unit is
responsible for revising policies and procedures, formulating staff
development plan, organizing staff development programmes,
recommending external training programmes for staff to facilitate
their professional development. The Society has been awarded as
“Manpower Developer” by the Employees Retraining Board, reflecting
its outstanding achievement in Staff Development and Training.

Last year, 57 internal training programmes were organized for different
positions of staff. Topics included Complaint Handling, Proposal
Writing and Service Development, various theories and skills of
professional intervention etc. There was very encouraging feedback
from participants, i.e. an average rating of 4.87 out of a 6-point scale,
reflecting the achievement of training objectives and the high quality
of the training programmes.

Staff Orientation programmes were organized on a regular basis aiming
at enhancing new colleagues’ understanding of the Society’s history,
mission, visions, systems and services, and facilitating their sense
of belonging to the Society. In addition, 3 different service-specific
induction courses were organized for newly recruited social workers
to cultivate them our “family perspective” and equip them with
knowledge and skills in service delivery. Training was also organized
for new appraisers to enhance their understanding of our appraisal
system and their roles in performance management.

The Society organized a series of training to meet the emergent need
of new service development, e.g. Peer Learning and Practice Group on
Co-parenting (Phase 3) was set up to facilitate the synergy among service
units and the reflection of frontline staff in service development. The Society
also engaged a professional trainer from the United States to be consultant
to support the development of our pilot approach in co-parenting service.
The trainer and a social worker of the pilot service presented in a seminar
organized by the Society, in which 200 professionals including judges
from family court attended, that facilitated the professional exchanges
among our staff and professionals from different fields.

The Society subsidized over 291 staff members to attend external
training programmes in 276 different topics, including management
training, IT knowledge, and various service approaches. A total of
698 days of study leave were granted for staff to attend these external
training programmes.

To support professional training and development in the social
welfare sector, a total of 17 placements were offered for social
work students in our different service units, and we had regular
sharing sessions with different NGOs on staff development for
experiences exchange and advancement.

REE"HBEMAREET
ENTA s TSR ZEAE
Participants shared their
paintings at the “One-day
Workshop on Use of Art in
Social Work Intervention”
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Mr. Ma Kam Wah, JP, shared the practice wisdoms in
proposal writing and service development
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Social Work Consultant

Our consultant team is composed of 4 dedicated social workers.
Their work focuses were:

Service Enhancement

The Social Work Consultant (SWC) team served as key members
in the task group to review and analyze all the complaint records
and reports of critical incidents in our Society for the year of 2016.
The report was submitted to the Executive Committee. Major
observations, gaps identified and enhancement measures formulated
were shared with management staff. Moreover, direct support was
provided in the management of various complaint cases. Besides,
Centre-based Service Audits were conducted which aimed to enhance
the service quality of casework intervention and to buffer against
possible risks on services.

Agency Training and Staff Development

In order to enhance the service quality, the competence of
professional staff and to promote the transfer of learning, the SWC
team has collaborated with Staff Development Unit to formulate a
comprehensive staff training plan, and made good use of the Social
Welfare Development Fund to organize a variety of staff training
programmes, including various theories and skills of professional
intervention. Centre-based training sessions were also tailored to meet
the specific training needs of various centres. Moreover, knowledge
management has been adopted to ensure an effective exchange and
sharing of service materials and resources among service units.

Service Development

The SWC team has continued to serve as a think tank in the Society’s
service development and offer professional support to staff. The team
assisted in the planning, funding identification, proposal writing, and
related works in setting up of new projects and supervising project
staff. For example, the “Smiley Activation Project — Community/
Home-based Depression Treatment for the Elderly”, “Dementia
Assessment Service”, “Medical Consultation Service for Children
and Adolescents with Suspected ASD and / or ADHD”. Social Work
Consultants also collaborated with academics to conduct studies for
different newly established services. Moreover, media interviews
were conducted to facilitate service promotion. Besides, the team
formulated Society’s feedback to controversial issues such as the
public consultation on “Sexual Offences Involving Children and
Persons with Mental Impairment”, the review of “Multi-disciplinary
Case Conference on Suspected Child Abuse Cases”.

AN B FRRN R e R JBA 2R B Bl 3 = 5% R s it R R R BB ok

Our Certified Dementia Care Planners received training on dementia care planning
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Risk Management and Service Audit
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Risk Management

Risk Management is an indispensible part in corporate governance
and service operation. Since the establishment of Risk Management
System and Risk Management Policy in 2013, the practices of
Risk Management has been effectively embedded in Society’s
daily operation to help prevent or respond to risks promptly.

Last year, all units of the Society identified and assessed risks
in their areas of work and developed corresponding mitigation
measures. The results were updated in the Risk Register in
the beginning of the risk management cycle for ensuring
continuous monitoring and the planned mitigation actions
would be implemented. In the year-end review, the various
measures under the Risk Management System were reviewed,
including analyzing the complaint cases and critical incidents
over the year with a view to develop improvement measures.
The major findings were reported to Executive Committee
and shared with staff.

We believe that an effective Risk Management System can help
reduce operation risks, enhance service quality and provide
assurance for corporate governance and sustainable development.

Service Audit

To safeguard the service quality throughout the service delivery
process, the Internal Audit Team (IAT) conducted on-site assessments
on our service units, including interviewing service users and
staff, to ensure our service delivery meeting agency’s policies and
procedures. In the coming year, IAT will provide Service Quality
Standards training workshop for staff of School Social Work Service
to strengthen their concept and facilitate their implementation of
relevant measures in their own service settings.

On-site Assessment

In 2016-2017, the IAT conducted service audits on our Enhanced
Home and Community Care Service Centres in East Kowloon (Shun
Lee) Centre, New Territories (Tai Wo Hau) Centre and Lamma
Centre; Integrated Home Care Service Teams in New Territories
(Kwai Fong) Centre; Integrated Family Service Centres in Kwai
Chung (South); and School Social Work Service in East Kowloon
(Ngau Tau Kok) Centre.

To ensure that our cases are properly handled, all service units
providing casework service have to comply with their own Case
Monitoring System (CMS). Through established assessment
procedures and regular cases reviews, good quality of service and
proper case follow-up and monitoring are assured. In 2016-2017,
IAT conducted assessment on Kwai Chung (South) Integrated
Family Service Centre to ensure that CMS had been complied.
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Best Practice Manual

According to the recommendation of the Government appointed
Lump Sum Grant Independent Review Committee in 2008, the
welfare sector should develop a Best Practice Manual (BPM) for
NGOs on various management issues, including human resource
management, financial management, as well as corporate governance
and accountability. To this end, the Social Welfare Department
(SWD) conducted a consultancy study and engaged the welfare
sector and relevant stakeholders on the production of the BPM.

The BPM has been effective from 1st July, 2014 and comprises
guidelines at two levels: Level One guidelines are those that NGOs are
expected to follow unless there are strong justifications for not to do
so; Level Two guidelines are those that NGOs are encouraged to adopt.

Our Society has reviewed and formulated relevant policies and
procedures according to the Level One guidelines, including: to
formulate policies and procedures on managing Lump Sum Grant
reserve and provident fund reserve, and to revise the Society’s
policies and procedures on complaint handling. In the past year, we
had been implementing these policies and procedures, including:

* The Executive Committee and management team are responsible
for reviewing and planning for the maximized use of the two
above-mentioned reserves on annual basis, and disseminating
information about the reserves and brief plan on how to use
the reserves through appropriate channels (including Annual
Report and Annual General Meeting); and

Spent the full amount of the additional allocation for salary
adjustment, and inform staff members about the arrangement
according the rules and regulations of SWD and the BPM for
salary adjustment.

Our Society will continue to implement these policies and procedures
and review the operation and make enhancement as necessary.

Besides, the Society will make reference to the Level Two
guidelines and consider adopting best practice according to the
situation of the Society.
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Co-operation with Media to promote HKFWS’s services
To promote our services and working approaches to the public,
we have close collaboration with the media. We are also dedicated
to arouse the public concern on social issues and promoted the
services to the needy individuals.

In 2016-2017, our clinical psychologists and professional social
workers were invited by different media including television
and radio programmes, newspapers and magazines to share
their professional views and practice wisdom on topics such
as family relationship, divorce families and co-parenting,
family relationship, youth development and education, elders
and caregivers mental health etc. Our professional social
workers also contributed articles to columns on Wen Wei Po,
SCMP Education Post and Recruit to share tips on handling
individual and family emotional problems, stresses management,
youths’ career planning and career counselling to reinforce
our professional image.

Corporate Partnerships

We continued to liaise with different stakeholders and business
sectors to promote corporate volunteer projects and programmes
to serve the community. In 2016 - 2017, the Society has nominated
47 corporates to join the “Caring Company” Scheme organized
by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service to express our
gratitude for their contributions to the community. In future,
the Society will continue to explore more partnerships and
resources to serve the needy.

Family Month

Since we have celebrated her 65" Anniversary in 2014, “Family
Month” has been organized in May as the Society’s annual
signature event to strengthen family relationship and promote
the value of family solidarity among the general public. As the
third year of Family Month, “Family Mental Health” and “Peace
in Family” were continued to be the themes and more than 20
programmes were arranged across the territory to promote
individuals and family mental health message.
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Our professional social workers and clinical psychologists were invited by different media to share their professional views
and practice wisdom on different family-related topics
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Our professional social workers also contributed articles on newspapers and online media to provide readers tips on handling
individual and family emotional problems

19



i e R EEARTS
Integrated Family Services







BIZINI & T  £EEEA LI - HENEEERE - BUAEENFHE > BEFEANEE—FEHNEEERN » #I1X
BARREHRAZERLELNES > RENFTLOFHAEZZENNTRELHSAZR  8EF - ZEBREREREIRR
RFRERME » SHARRE ST AEE - ESABOHNEREHLECS +AMIRERT D FERMBEZEANEM - BREAKF
EFESE EERNHERIZT  REHNEFEENZTRRE @ B AMPIREESIE - BERINatL) -

Fit - B ORBIN - FEEEBEFNSEANT RAERBIEAR "REAERER - LEEMEAIFEX - &
STRFHENSZFNER > BRAEAE—FAINBELTRRBIER -

[FIEEE 5248 - MRt TARF5ETEl
T TEBRES NZFT AU THEBEREE ) KXFERERER  ROMERHESELS TR > WREX
ERRGMFEY—EEMNEGETR  LARHNEGERNRERKE  LAtFIHRAEIAER -

it TR FHEEEHREFIRNRE
T THRENERRBRAR ) NENT  dITERARHREFENRE  RHAREXRASHE - DEFELT
B - RERN - LBMEFRIEMAROERS - EEtMEREDC  BEEEHRRAOERS -

HEAR - B TEEEEsTE

EREZERRHEHROZET @ mTEBRL "HFEEAR ) BIERER  AEHEAFRBEBAINRREHTR
FeCRORIANIRR - MO BFEANBBE L ERIES - RERZTFHBEMKRBNSRAERS ERFRARIEIE - MRYL
B FEARRTERIIEEMER - B > BT RAAXIFZTFRERRAVERS !

b L B IREIHT " REAERER . ) FENRABENSSN  EBREEBTRNRBEEE HOARAREOEE
R HARERD  URZEHRERE -

toh - £ TRERE  RERSE  HERAERE, FRBIAT  AFETBGEESRERBFOHBEATRAIHR
FEREEBENTERTY - SEHFLEE  AXHE  LEBHENA - XEEBGARERBPOSHEE TR
NFREZE - METRIEZES  BiB8%NRBERERTMBHRONMRE - BIt - #BiBI7%8ERERFEAR
REBRIBESIEISIRF  98% A ANBIZIBMGIRIS LURRE - B ERM4%NERERTHEHNERMBTCSEE
BE o MARBEEHERAANE - BELHFNREFALENEETEENRR -

BERESEEIHAFORE > AETREBEERIBERERE  RERSE - TEAEMRIVRT - EMRLREL
BE - WHABREMRERMEMIRE L2 —ERRRTE -



The highly competitive socio-economic environment, increasing living costs, crowded living conditions, disputes over
political issues etc have posed tremendous stress on families and individuals in Hong Kong throughout the year. Even
children and teenagers have been affected with no exception. It is not surprising that various surveys related to children’s
anxiety level and mental health well being showed alarming results. More alarming still, despite much public attention
over the year, the number of suicides committed by children and youth remained a painful concern. The need for early
identification and sufficient support for children and families in need are pressing.

To address the pressing need for child-related services through a family perspective, a number of new initiatives were
developed in the past year with funding support from various sources. Below listed are the major examples:

The “CareNet for the Children @ Kindergarten Social Work Service” funded by the Keswick Foundation to offer stationing
social work service to kindergartens based on the “Social Emotional Learning” model. With support by academics, our
project also seeks to develop a well-structured and effective screening tool for identifying children and families in need at
an early stage and offer them with proper support;

The “SHKP Rainbow with KIDS Supporting Children Encountered Family Crisis” funded by the Sun Hung Kai Properties
to offer various intensive therapeutic intervention to children experiencing family adversities like divorce / separation of
parents, death of significant others, domestic violence, etc.

The “Sweet Home Sweet Child — Child Parent Relationship Enhancement Project” to conduct different parenting training
programmes based on the theoretical framework of Child Parent Relationship Therapy, or filial play, with the vision to
promote a paradigm shift in the parenting culture with a focus back to strengthening the parent-child relationship with
parental empathy and acceptance.

Besides these new initiatives to offer support for needy children and families, we have put concerted efforts to develop our
projects to promote family mental health, combat against domestic violence, and support divorcing or separating parents
with encouraging impact.

Furthermore, under the “children-centred, family-focused and community-based” service direction, the Society’s 6 Integrated
Family Service Centres continue to provide a spectrum of quality services to the needy families, ranging from educational
programmes to therapeutic counselling work and crisis intervention. In this year, nearly 8,000 cases were handled by our 6
IFSCs. Of the closed cases, the overall satisfaction rate from service users was above 98%. Besides, over 97% of the service
users indicated an uplift in their problem solving capacity and 98 % in their support network, while over 94% revealed
perceived improvements in their main problems. These encouraging results reflect the team’s efforts served to make a
difference in the lives of those in need.

We shall strive to strengthen family functioning and support vulnerable individuals through our children-centred, family
focused and community based services!
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Currently we have 6 Integrated Family Service Centres located
at North Point, Yau Tong, Kwun Tong, Sham Shui Po, Tseung
Kwan O and Kwai Chung serving the families in need in Hong
Kong. We provide comprehensive and extensive professional
services to families, to help them handle various problems,
develop the potential of individuals and families, enhance family
resilience and strengthen family mutual help in the community
to build up a caring society.

Targeted Users

Individuals and families, with priority for the deprived groups,
including single parents, ethnic minorities, new arrivals and
low income families.

Service Delivery

* Family Counselling Unit (FCU)
Helped individuals and families in need through intensive
counselling service, family crisis management and therapeutic
group work service, etc.

Family Support Unit (FSU)

Provided support to families and encouraged mutual
help among them, including brief counselling, family aide,
mutual help groups for emotional support and single parent
groups, etc.

* Family Resource Unit (FRU)
Organized various activities to promote family harmony
and build up social capital, e.g. volunteer service, interest
groups, recreational and developmental programmes, family
library, etc. These activities also served to identify needy
families in an early stage and render timely assistance to
prevent deterioration of problems.

"EARE, - REENHTHARANST—AATARLCE RFER

"Men's Cafeteria" — Men gathered to cook and share
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Service Highlight

This year, IFSCs handled a total of 8,028 cases. The top
three case natures opened this year were namely emotional
problem (17%), accomodation (14%), and old age (13%).

Mental wellness is the focus of the year, various groups and
programs were tailored to different clienteles, e.g. psychodrama
group to enhance participants’ understanding in handling
various emotions. Family mental health is also our concern,
the message of “Love Family - Respect, Responsibility and
Share" was promoted to strengthen family relationships.

IFSCs are developing different intervention approaches or
activities with multi-disciplinary collaboration to echo
to the service needs of children with special educational
needs and their parents. Programmes such as organizing
parent support groups and workshops to build parental
support networks and conducting activities with themes
on play therapy to enhance the children's social skills
and ability in managing emotions. Besides, collaboration
with Hong Kong Polytechnic University to provide speech
therapy training groups to the children and their parents, so
as to relieve pressure on child care and early identify needy
families. With the kind assistance from a private psychiatrist
volunteer, a child assessment service for children suspected
to be suffered from special educational needs was continued.

Healthy development of underprivileged children is one of our
dedications. ‘ “Kids” the Future Project’ has accomplished
the 4th project year. With funding support, a wide variety
of interest classes were carried out in 6 IFSCs or children
could join interest classes at their own choice with the
availability of financial assistance. SHKP “Rainbow with
KIDS” served children who had encountered family crisis.
Clinical psychologists, social workers and art therapists
worked together to help children get through the hard time
they were facing. Stationing social work service was provided
to kindergartens joining “Nurturing Seeds Kindergarten
Project” so as to identify needy families at early stage of
the families.

Services that are especially for women including “Women
Helping Women” which aimed at promoting the message of
"zero violence" to women and children who were at risk of
family violence. The project educated participants healthy
ways to manage emotions and peaceful conflict resolution
methods. In-law relationships can be stressful, women groups
that enabled participants to share wisdom about in-law
communication could also help them relieve pressure.

“Men’s Project” continued. The project aimed at enhancing
participants’ potential and strengthening community network
through volunteer trainings, family outings and dinner
gatherings.

N
W
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Our Society also continued to develop new services for
grass-root families. Starting from January 2017, Chow Tai
Fook Charity Foundation "Family in Crisis Pilot Support
Project" was launched to provide financial and emotional
support to families with dependent children who are living
in Kowloon district to help them overcome crisis arised from
the loss of breadwinner or breadwinner unable to work due
to accident or sudden illness.

IFSCs also actively responded to community needs. Services
including paying regular visits to private elderly homes and
establishing regular collaboration with the Housing Society
and other regional partners to meet the needs of the elderly
in the community, setting mobile counters with the theme
on "cherishing life" to prevent suicide, conducting "Good
Health Community Education Project at Kin Ming" to enhance
residents' concerns about personal health including healthy
eating and doing exercises, organizing “Love Home Lok
Wah Outreaching Visit” and explored the needs of hidden
families by outreaching to them, employing Pakistani
staff to develop services for ethnic minorities living in the
community, etc.
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"Good Health Community Education Project at Kin Ming" - Participants learnt to prevent diabetes
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Magic show - Visit to the elderly home by a group of children
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TER - WE AR AT HEKERE - BEREEVRENESEN
“Love Family - Respect, Responsibility and Share" Community Exhibition promoting the importance
of family mental health
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A group of students participated in the scheme to enhance the emotional health
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Clinical Psychological Service
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The overall objective of the service is to provide preventive,
educational and remedial services to individuals and families in
order to help them progress towards a psychologically healthier
and more fulfilling life. With systematic and scientific application
of professional knowledge and skills, the service provides
psychological assessment and treatment to individuals or families.
It also conducts community education and offers consultation
to the Society’s social workers in case management.

Targeted Users

Individuals and families, including children, adolescents, adults
and the elderly, referred by social workers of the Society.

Service Delivery

Psychological assessment, diagnosis, treatment, crisis management,
training and seminars.

Service Highlight

* Provide professional psychological assessment and treatment
services to the community.

» Collaborate with Integrated Family Service and School
Social Work Service to enhance professionalism of service
development.

* Conduct talks and workshops to the public to enhance mental
health awareness.

* Provide internal training for social workers to enhance
professional knowledge on psychological intervention for
population with special needs.
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Family Aide Service

Family Aide Service continues to be one of the essential
supportive services in our IFSCs. The service helps casework
intervention to enhance the effectiveness of counselling
services. Our tailor-made training programmes can help needy
individuals or caring agents to acquire the knowledge, skills
and experience in self care, home management and providing
care for young children.

Targeted Users

* Parents / caring agents lacking knowledge and skills in child
care.

* Clients who are not capable of taking care of themselves and
other family members due to their physical or mental problems.

» Families in and after crisis.

» Anyone in need of the services as assessed by social workers.

Service Delivery

» Skills training is rendered on an individual basis and small group
training is also offered if appropriate.

* Cooperation with social workers to provide small group activities
and programmes on family relationship.

Service Highlight

* 480 cases have been handled in this year. Besides individual
training, around 90 group trainings and programmes have
been conducted for over 1,400 participants.

» To prevent family tragedy, various groups and programmes
aimed to promote the mental health of individual and harmony
family relationship were held with IFSC social workers.
Individual trainings to support the specific individual and
family need were provided with flexible schedule to tailor-made
the need of different families. Whenever needs of family
were identified, Family Aide would share with case worker
to provide prompt assistance to the family.

* In response to the high housing need, (e.g. fire in Yau Tong
after Lunar New Year), Family Aide escorted families to rent
suitable housing within a short period.
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Family Resource Centre - Drop-in Family Services and Single Parent Family Services
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The centre services are provided to raise resilience of individuals,
families and to strengthen family relationship and functions
to enhance parenting competence. Special efforts are put to
assist divorced families in adjusting family transition through
facilitating divorced parents to develop “child-focused” co-
parenting for the betterment and welfare of the children and,
to facilitate children from divorced families to develop positive
attitude, rebuild their confidence and security.

Targeted Users

Divorced and single-parent families in the territory and families
living in Tuen Mun.

Service Delivery

To provide individual and families living in the local community
with integrated services. For divorced and single parents with
their children, specialized services including drop-in service,
resources corner, enquiry service, volunteer service, child
care support services, varieties of supportive and therapeutic
groups and educational programmes, family mediation service,
co-parenting education and support services, single parent family
hotline, quarterly newsletter “Tsin”, mutual aid groups, etc.

Service Highlight

* Thanks to the Capital Project Fund funded by the Community
Chest in subsidizing the Centre on the renovation and
maintenance work to improve the centre environment and
enhance the service quality.

To have exchange activities with social welfare organizations
and Family Court from Taiwan and Singapore with aims to
promote concern and enhance exchange with sectors from
the nearby Asian countries over work on “Child-focused
Co-parenting” and “Parenting Coordination”.

To collaborate with district partners, provide territory-wide
educational and supporting service to divorce family with
aims to facilitate parents and children to cope with the
challenges arising from the changing family environment
due to parental divorce / separation.

To continue implementing “A Beam of Hope - Pilot Project
on ‘Child-focused’ Parenting Coordination and Co-parenting
Services for Divorced Families” Phase II supported by the
Community Chest. Through consolidating the past practice
experiences, to promote to divorced parents to develop
“co-parenting partnership” to take care of their children.



c 2016 FHBHMMEEEDIYABHETEREGIE # - Collaborated with the Social Work Department of the Chinese
FrEEHMBVSHBEBERHFILANELSE | FE University of Hong Kong, announcing the research result

LB, E A [ HE N on the “Impact of Co-Parenting Approaches on Children’s
Iéiﬁﬁzf t THERE, BBRREAES SN Well-Being in Post-Divorce Families in Hong Kong” in June

2016. The findings provided us with more local evidence and
information for further service development on co-parenting.

o BT THEHE  EXMEiE > 88200 ®3E;E * Meanwhile, to organize the “Co-parenting Seminar — the
TR T B4 BEZAMBEINFEEY  Crossroad to Parental Responsibility”. Over two hundreds

2 , Sl TEIEEhA_HE cross sector professionals, i.e. judges, lawyers, social workers,
SMELR  HERFREEH T RERE—HER doctors and scholars from local and overseas attended. It

hopes to raise concern from cross sectors and public on the
“child-focused co-parenting”.
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Co-parenting Seminar — the Crossroad to Parental Responsibility

TEBMECBARBEXNHT LS OXE  MERS
Research report on “Impact of Co-Parenting Approaches on Children’s Well-Being in
Post-Divorce Families in Hong Kong”
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To provide a respite for families and individuals with tailor-made
programmes to facilitate self-reflection, manage stress and
emotions, learn new coping skills, and to enhance family and
interpersonal relationship.

Targeted Users

Families and individuals, NGOs, schools, churches, private
companies.

Service Delivery

* Day or overnight groups or programmes on topics such as
personal growth, parent-child relationship, stress management,
marital enrichment and conflict resolution.

* Venue booking to non-government organizations and community
organizations are also promoted.

Service Highlight

* To render a short respite for families and individuals, including
tailor-made activities to handle stress and emotion, enhance
problem-solving skills, facilitate family and interpersonal
relationship.

» Make use of the peaceful feeling of Zonta White House (ZWH),
to develop a series of group, services and programmes on“Green
Life Living”, “Narrative Practice” for enrichment of marriage,
parent-child communication and family relationship and enable
participarts to face adversity with positive energy.

Collaborated with other NGOs and schools to strengthen
parent-child relationship.

» Continued to promote the activities of Mindfulness. In order
to enhance participants’ awareness on the importance of self
care and positive aspect of living.

* To continue developing programmes on aromatherapy, such
as relaxing massage, parent-child massage, couple massages
to enhance positive communication and mental health.
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Women Helping Women Children Day Camp:
Art work for making “My Lovely Family”
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Emotional Management Day Camp for Children:

Making“My Tree of Life”
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Women Helping Women Children Day Camp:
Rubbing leaf towel
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The Family Careline volunteers organized visits to elderly home
to share love and concern to the community

The project aims at providing emotional support and peer
counselling to needy people through phone contacts handled
by trained volunteers.

Targeted Users

People who are in need of support or have encountered problems
in their daily lives.

Service Delivery

Trained volunteers answer telephone enquiry and give support
in the form of peer counselling and making referrals for relevant
services as necessary.

Service Highlight

* This year, the Family Careline service had extended the scope
of service . Other than the regular Telephone Hotline Service,
Careline volunteers also participated in various community
service, including concern calls delivered to individuals and
elders living alone or with elder spouse, and organized visit to
Elderly Home in the community to deliver love and concern
to the community.

e More than 1,700 calls were received with 28% increase in
in-coming telephone calls and referred more than 50 callers
to receive professional counselling or other services during
this year. Moreover, the volunteer team also served a total
of 33 individuals and elders or elder couples with regular
telephone concern calls. In future, the Family Careline will
continue to give support and bring about positive energy to
those emotional disturbed.

* The Family Careline puts a great importance on developing a
committed, loving and knowledgeable volunteer team to serve
the community. Through regular training and supervision,
individual coaching and experience sharing activities,
volunteers’ potential, self-confidence and competence in
serving were enhanced. Training workshops, monthly team
gathering and day camp were conducted to team members
to facilitate mutual support and learning.

'RiGRIRER THENAE WERT L BNBHREE
The Family Careline volunteers joined the monthly team
gathering to strengthen their mutual support and learning
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Participants enjoyed a peaceful time and relived their stress by being
indulged in the nature
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Family Mental Health Service

The project was delivered in 6 IFSCs of the Society, aiming
at helping people with emotional problems to acquire alternative
perspectives towards their problems and strengthening their
problem solving capabilities so that they are able to cope with
the stresses in their daily lives or at work.

Apart from conducting Cognitive Behavioural Group, the project
will provide various kinds of groups and programmes to achieve
therapeutic objectives and early assistance to people under stress.

Targeted Users

People suffering from stress or emotional problems.

Service Delivery

* Family Mental Health Service include 2 elements, namely
12-session Cognitive-Behavioural Therapeutic Groups (CBT
Groups) and Mental Health Enhancement programmes.

* In order to promote the holistic care and stress management,
liaisons with different parties and organizations will be made so
as to provide different kinds of knowledge and skills for users.

Service Highlight

« Cognitive Behavioural Therapy (CBT) groups were
implemented in our 6 IFSCs continuously. The outcomes
were very positive and encouraging. The groups had helped
to enhance participants’ positive thinking and skills in
interpersonal relationship and problem solving. Through
various kinds of groups and programs in the Mental Health
Enhancement Programme (MHEP), it not only helped a lot
to facilitate interaction of members and ex-CBT members but
also assisted forming a significant social network for them.
MHERP also encouraged their continual learning to enhance
their self-understanding and self-awareness.

* This year, the Community education programme had invited
ex-CBT members to share their learning and positive changes
with other program participants through different means such
as singing, drama, art work presentation etc., Members found
the opportunity is valuable in which they could refresh their
learning and have developed connection with each other. After
the sharing sessions, participants could join different experiential
workshops as well to achieve better mental wellness.

-

2016-2017FEMARLEE) - "HEOEE, c E2REERS/O/ER
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The Community Education Program in 2016-2017 invited ex-CBT group
members to share their learning and positive changes. Their sharing was
very fruitful and inspiring
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Peace Movement
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Alternatives to Violence Project
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In response to the rising statistics of intimate partner violence,
Peace Project - Batterer Intervention Programme was started in
2006. It aimed at ending violence in intimate partner relationships
in the community through voluntary participation, by means of
treatment group, mutual-aid group, and educational activities.

Moreover, our Society was tasked to provide Approved
Programme under Domestic and Cohabitation Relationships
Violence Ordinance, it is a psycho-educational programme
designed for abusers who are ordered by the court to attend
under the Ordinance. The Approved Programme is now
provided by SWD.

In considering those in need of intervention and ready to join
a brief programme, HKFWS dedicated to provide Educational
Programme on Stopping Domestic Violence (EPSDV), it is
a short educational programme with the emphasis of timely,
flexible and skill-based intervention to help batterers or
potential batterers in stopping use of violence, coping with
the crisis arising from their violent behaviours; and improving
their relationship with their spouses / cohabitants.

Apart from the above, the Society brought Alternatives to
Violence Project (AVP) from overseas into Hong Kong since
2002. Fundamental belief of AVP is that everyone has an
internal power for peace and betterment, and this power helps to
transform violence into peace in conflict management. Intensive
learning experience through 3 levels of workshops, include
Basic, Advanced and Training for the Trainers, together with
the Formation of AVP Alumni in 2003 to promote peace work
in the community formed the core of the project. Different
versions of AVP has been developed, such as youth version,
parent version, and community based version, to tailor for
promoting peace in different target groups.

Targeted Users

People who are interested.

Service Highlight

* Conducted quarterly meetings for AVP alumni to encourage
them to live out the spirit of AVP in daily life.

* Continue to run workshops and programmes for youths
and public in Sai Kung and Tseung Kwan O to train peace
ambassadors and promote peace in the district.
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“PEACE CAMPUS” - Educational Programme on Stopping Domestic Violence

kBHEE Targeted Users
« 18l EAL (B4LIGA) - + 18 years old or above.
 BE  RARERLEEHR EGRERED - * Having frequent conflicts (even violence) with spouse /
cohabitant.
Ak 75 2 X Service Delivery
c AU THER (BFEEN) YFEMS  * Emotional management skill, Understanding of impact of
2 DNMESEERAEBRNFE - conflicts (including violence) on family, Use of peaceful means
to resolve conflictual communication between partners.
o SR N HE SR EE) o * Brief talks, sharing, activities, role play.
< AR (WIEEBRLET - FEIL.5/\BF) * 4 sessions (approximately once per week, 1.5 hours per session).
Az 7 & & Service Highlight
o BURHIE T 1R 8RR NEERE "FIER S, RMIFE - Educational workshops were conducted to enhance participants’
I8 RN  RISESRIZEI100% o knowledge on “non-violent” and “peaceful” couple communication,

participants’ satisfaction rate towards to workshops was 100% .

c BWOBRE SEXBEEELMAIEF  BHIEFA ©  « Mutual-aid sessions were completed to facilitate graduated
members’ mutual support and self-learning.

c EBTRIEEFEFEAEAALTHE  SIFZHEEE -« Promoting the programme to district organizations and the
J

NBRETEHRES o public through different channels, including sharing sessions

ju)

A
in district meetings and mobile counters, etc.

TAFEY it THOREARUERARALTEE "FMTEYy, HERE

Mobile counter to promote “Peace Campus” to the public

TRy, it TR NER 4t @RI
“Peace Campus” trainer offered one-to-one training to enthusiastic
participant
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Women Helping Women Against Violence
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Stretching exercise helped women to relax themselves and focused
on self-love

HKFWS is keen on fostering harmonious family relationship,
as well as promoting zero tolerance for domestic violence.
Women Helping Women shared the same mission, she has been
supporting Women Helping Women Against Violence Project
since 2012, and carrying through 2016 with “Women Helping
Women - Step out from Violence” .

Targeted Users

* Woman victims and children experiencing domestic violence.

* General public.

Service Delivery
* Primary Intervention: To raise public awareness via

district-based outreaching programme and consultation
hotline.

* Secondary Intervention: Case work and group work service
for victims, particularly for women and children, experiencing
family violence; to work on the areas of self-protection,
emotional well-being, and life-rebuilding.

Service Highlight

* Community education on anti-violence. Assist and support
abused women and children to cope with the hard time through
therapy and skills enhancement programmes.

» Continue to provide voluntary service on supporting abused
women and their children and implementing educational
programmes in the community.

* Invite users to be mentors helping the new users in Kwun
Tong, Kwai Chung, Tsing Yi and Tuen Mun.

V@

@@

HEERBFPABCE LITRMMEE

Group members encourage each other via writing cards
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Trip to the Hong Kong Wetland Park
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Healthy Divorced Men Project

Affected by cultural and gender influence, men tend to hide up
themselves or adopt a voidance approach when facing difficulties.
This 2-year project is supported by Community Chest. It aims
to assist separated / divorced men (SDM) in adjusting to new
life and rebuilding connection with Self, Family, Peers and
Community through a series of life rebuilding classes, groups
and educational programmes.

Targeted Users

Divorced / Separated men.

Service Delivery

To build up competence of SDM through learning new skills
and organizing community programmes. To establish a social
support network by setting up of mentoring system and mutual
help group for SDM. To assist SDM to work through their
feelings through therapeutic group.

Service Highlight
+ 29 Life Rebuilding Classes had been completed.

* 9 therapeutic groups, 6 mutual aid groups, 36 educational
seminars and 17 community programs for SDM were organized.
All of the participants showed improvement in adjustment
towards marital separation and overall mental health.

* 2 mentorship training workshops with 31 mentors were trained.
Over 300 concern calls and visits were conducted.

+ 7 family outings were held to enhance family relationship of
men.

-

St
Men’s Yoga Class
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“Nurturing Seeds” School Social Work Service
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In response to family needs and to fill the service gap, our Society
launched “Nurturing Seeds” School Social Work Services in a
self-financing mode to provide stationing kindergarten social
work service to kindergartens and nurseries which aim at
offering preventive service and timely intervention to needy
families, as well as strengthening family functions.

Targeted Users

Students, Students’ family members and teachers in Kindergarten
/ Nursery.

Service Highlight

11 Kindergartens joined our service. 389 enquiries and 102
cases were handled in this year. 178 groups and programme
sessions were conducted to strengthen users’ social and emotional
development.

* In-school social workers provide counselling to identify at-risk
preschoolers and their families so as to offer timely casework
service and strengthened teachers’ ability to meet the needs of
families and kindergartens.

* To equip teachers with necessary skills in handling students
with SEN effectively, “SEN Teacher Training Programmes”
were conducted by social worker, occupational therapist and
clinical psychologist in this year.

TGS AREGRE IR BRTFIEE
Noah’s Ark Life Education Parent-child activity
BRI SBEHMRBEXRBRBSFY
Erhit TIR R FEBEE - (EEH TR
Families explored the beauty of the nature through
visiting Noah’s Ark and enjoyed family games so
to enhance parent-child relationship

TREBMEE R, BAmAEE
Sensory integration Teachers’ Training
BEMPIRME TREBE,  ERBHENTTIER
BERKERERTENNERR
To support teachers to work with SEN preschoolers,
sensory integration training was conducted to
foster preschooler’s development
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CareNet for the Children @ Kindergarten Social Work Service Project
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CareNet for the Children @ Kindergarten Social Work Service
Project was commenced in January 2017 for 3 years so as to
enhance support for the family of pre-schoolers and to fill up
the service gap. This project is based on "Social Emotional
Learning" (SEL) through "Stationing" social worker service
in kindergartens which aims at offering preventive service and
timely intervention to needy families, as well as strengthening
the family functions of pre-schoolers.

Targeted Users

(In no particular order)
* Lock Tao Christian Kindergarten
* Yan Oi Tong Dan Yang Wing Man Kindergarten

* Tai Po Merchants Association Cheung Hok Ming Kindergarten
(Tseung Kwan O Branch)

* Grace Baptist Kindergarten

* St Peter's Church Kindergarten

» Zion Lutheran Kindergarten

* The Salvation Army Centaline Charity Fund Yau Tong Kindergarten
* St James Catholic Kindergarten

* Christian Youth Centre Kindergarten (Yau Tong)

Service Delivery

* Enquiry service

» Casework service

* Educational / Developmental Group & Programmes for pre-schoolers
* Educational / Developmental Groups & Programmes for parents
» Parent-Child Activities

* Teacher Training Workshop

* Evidence-based research study

Service Highlight

* To have early identification on underprivileged or at risk
preschoolers and families, offer timely support to them through
stationing kindergarten school social work service.

¢ Tailor-made intervention programmes for preschoolers, parents
and teachers in the serving kindergartens to enhance their
functioning and mutual collaboration to achieve the healthy
development of the preschoolers.

TEHBIS/NEN L TIES (CEZHIGXSNHE)
BRRBEENS BRTREREBRENTSE
“Master of Emotions” Children workshop — Children learnt different methods
to regulate their emotions through story listening

T B HENE (RERERSRDFHEE)
EENRESBERTREEMEECREENA

“Make a Praise” Children Group — Children learnt to appreciate

themselves and accept others through experiential learning activities
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Learning Chinese through the “Chinese Alphabets Logical Language System”
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From July 2010, our Society has arranged Language
Programme for ethnic minorities which was sponsored by
Home Affairs Department (HAD). In this financial year, our
Society continued to implement the Language Programme
in the Tuen Wan and Kwai Tsing districts, aimed at facilitat-
ing the adjustment and enhancing the integration of ethnic
minorities and local people throughout the community.

Targeted Users

Adults of ethnic minorities in Tsuen Wan and Kwai Tsing districts.

Service Delivery
Cantonese and English courses with classroom and activities.

Service Highlight

* Cantonese Classes and English Classes including Basic,
Intermediate and Advanced Levels have been conducted for
the adults of ethnic minority (EM) groups. The beneficiaries
included Filipino, Ghanaian, Indian, Loas, Nepalese, Pakistani,
Venezuelans and Vietnamese.

* The “Chinese Alphabets Logical Language System (CALLS)”
was adopted to teach the EM students about traditional Chinese
characters. Through CALLS, students not only learnt Chinese
listening, speaking, reading and writing skills, but also Chinese
Characters Input Method. Such method increased the study
motivation of the EM students.

* The English Classes followed the curriculum of ‘Trinity Graded
English Examinations in Spoken English” so as to strengthen
students’ oral ability.

* The HSBC volunteers were invited to help the students to
practice listening, speaking, reading and writing skills in
Chinese and English. Such involvement also strengthened
the student’s confidence in speaking Cantonese and English.

EEETHOHETE2ERBERE
Ethnic minorities Students practised Cantonese with
HSBC volunteers
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Before the interest class began, all children and their parents took
group photos
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“Kids” the Future

To provide equal opportunity to the deprived children, “Kids’
the Future” Project was sponsored by the BOC Life for 5 years
to subsidize the children in need to join interest classes and to
enhance their development in “Body, Mind, Social and Spiritual”
through these classes.

Targeted Users

Deprived students from K.1 to P.6 (i.e. CSSA / Low-income CSSA
/ Financial Assistance Scheme - School Textbook Assistance /
Kindergarten and Child Care Centre Fee Remission Scheme)

Service Delivery

+ To subsidize successful applicants to join the interest classes
in HKFWS Integrated Family Service Centres.

» To subsidize successful applicants to join interest classes
in private / non-profit making sectors in the form of cash
allowance.

Service Highlight

* “‘Kids’ the Future” Project finished the 4th project year and
would start its last project year very soon. With the funding
support from the BOC Group Life Assurance Company
Limited. The Fund supports children from deprived families,
in terms of financial assistance, as well as organizing interest
classes in our IFSCs to develop potential of children in the
deprived families and enhance their confidence.

* In the past year, over 130 participants were benefited from
the financial aid. Over 900 attendance participated in interest
classes under this project.

* In the year ahead, more children and their families are expected
to be benefited from this project.

TE  SRRIEETEINEEH D  EALER - —HEHEEZBEE MR
RE—ES2MNE LY

Our project conducted not only in our centre, but also in the community.

A class of kindergarten students played the drum in their school
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Education and Support Project for Multi-generation Families
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Researches reviewed that dissatisfactory in-law relationship might
be significant obstacles to the building of harmonious family
relationship. The birth of the grandchildren will bring new challenges
to the family system and as a result, family members may feel
stressful and even their mental health may be affected. In view of
this, with sponsorship from the Lee Kum Kee Family Foundation,
the “Education and Support Project for Multi-Generation Families”
has been launched in October 2015 which aims to support multi
generation families to build up positive and harmonious in-law
relationship as well as to raise community concern to the needs
of the multi-generation families.

Targeted Users

Family members from multi-generation family including mother
and daughter-in-law, grandparent, husband and father-in-law, etc.

Service Delivery
* Outreach and community education programmes.

* Resource corner for multi-generation families.
* Potential development programmes for multi-generation families.

* Training and workshops for mother and daughter-in-law, husbands,
father-in-law and grandparents.

* Volunteers Development Programmes.

Service Highlight

During the period from April 2016 to March 2017, services had
been delivered as follows:

* “In-law relationship” and “Grand-parenting” were the main themes
of the community talks to educate and advocate the core family
value in order to promote the “respect, concern and love” culture
and to create care and concern atmosphere in the community.

* Conducted outreaching family classrooms in different spots
to advocate the community with harmonious and positive
in-law relationship and grandparent child-relationship.

* Established resource corner at different districts (Shau Kei Wan,
Kowloon City and Tuen Mum) for multi-generation families
and to provide positive messages and information on in-law and
grandparent relationship, grand-parenting skills, etc.

* Collaborated with district partners in territory to organize
workshops for mothers and daughter in-laws, in-laws to be,
husbands, father-in laws and grandparents, etc. and to enhance
their psychological well-being.

* Recruited mothers and daughter-in-laws to be the volunteers
and provided trainings to facilitate them in promoting and
conveying positive in-law relationship to the community.



ER o e — EIRRAREBRE (“In-law” relationship Talk)

DRERGAERER RALEEGT UAZE RABH - EBEFE BBNE—F
TR T EIERAMR , MIEEMERZE

Based on the family system theory with daily life examples; enhance the “in-law”
relationship by using the video sharing & game

: \":“'«1 ‘
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TR A L SR TIEYS (“Middle-man” training workshop)
HEEIERAGRT  (EATFBANSTREEERR TIHRER - BLMAIEIESFHIZERE
BNk A EE
“Man” takes an important role in the “in-law relationship” as a “Middle-man”. They
can share and learn how to be “a mediator” at home
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HKFWS is keen on promoting Parent Education and strengthening
the Child-Parent Relationship which is the important foundation
for children's healthy development and the family's well-being
as awhole. This 18 months project is supported by Home Affairs
Bureau and Family Council. It aims to assist parents of children
aged from 3 to 10 building up parents' parenting capacity and
equipping them with effective parenting knowledges and skills
through a series of parental education talks, different topical
educational workshops and Child Parent Relationship Therapy
(CPRT) parent training groups.

Targeted Users

Parents and foster parents with children (foster children) aged
from 3 to 10.

Service Delivery
* This project mainly comprises eight program domains :

* Community Roadshows.

* Parent Educational Talks.

* Topical Educational Workshops.

* "Child Parent Relationship Therapy" Parent Training Groups
(10 sessions).

* "Child Parent Relationship Therapy" Parent Alumni.
 "Child Parent Relationship Therapy" Parent Ambassadors.
» Parent Support Service.

¢ Research & Evaluation.

Service Highlight

* The project represents a new paradigm of parent education
such that parents are led to understand the inner world of
the children through their natural communication channel
of “play” and instead of verbalization.

* The project involves a “practicum” and “supervision” component
in which parents videotaped their home play sessions with their
children and presented the tape. They could receive feedback
from the group members and instructors during the CPRT
parent training. Parents can directly practice the parenting
skills learnt with their own children and experience the effect
of implementation on both of them and their relationships.

* The project is a new breakthrough that parents can also
learn the knowledge and skills of play therapy and act as the
therapists of their own children to support their needs. This
is an empowering process for the parents.
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SHKP Rainbow with KIDS Supporting Children Encountered Family Crisis
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SHKP Rainbow with KIDS Supporting Children Encountered
Family Crisis.

Targeted Users

Children aged below 18 who have encountered bereavement
of parents / family violence / parental separation or divorce /
or other family crises in the past 12 months.

Service Delivery

» Assessment of service needs for children

* Individual counselling service for children addressing their
emotional needs

* Design and implementation of supportive and therapeutic
groups

Service Highlight

* Rendered service by a team of professionals including
Clinical Psychologists, social workers and art therapists.

* Rendered in-depth and intensive counselling service by
child-centred play therapy or art therapy.

* Built up referral mechanism and co-work with referrers to
comprehensively support the family.

* Accept territory-wide referrals.



HEHERAARTS
Child Care Services
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Children are the future of our society. Proper care from parents and family during childhood is essential for their healthy
development. In recent years, the government promotes “unleashing the labour force of women” and, as a result, the demand
for child care support continues to rise. Besides, there are families that could not shoulder the child care responsibility due
to family crisis or problems. It is necessary to provide extra support and guidance to ensure children receive adequate care
and grow up in a safe environment.

There was an increasing number of child abuses in the past decade. The number of reported child abuse cases has increased
by 11% from 806 cases in 2006 to 892 cases in 2016. It was also alarming that there was an upsurge of child neglect cases
from 77 cases in 2006 to 182 cases in 2016, i.e. increased by 136.4 %. The Society has been providing different kinds
of child care support services including the Foster Care Service, the After School Care and Support Programme and the
Neighbourhood Support Child Care Project to serve the child care needs of families and promote the well-being of children.

Upholding the family perspective, the Society has developed different kinds of foster care services since 1984 to take care of
children without proper family care and support. As vast majority of children under Foster Care are those with special social
needs, this has created additional demands and challenges on foster parents’ caring functions. In view of this, the Society
has kept on providing professional training and support to foster parents through our “Foster Parents’ Training School” as
well as establishing foster parent mutual support groups in different districts. In 2016-17, with the theme of “Acceptance”,
programmes were launched to facilitate the relationship among foster parents, foster children and the natural parents and
enhance the quality of care. There were a total of 352 cases in Foster Care (Ordinary) and the satisfaction rate of natural
parents, foster children and foster parents were 100%. For Foster care (Emergency), a total of 95 cases were served and the
satisfaction rate of natural parents, foster children and foster parents were 100%, 94.44% and 100% respectively.

The “After School Care and Support Programme” provides Centre-based and School-based supportive services to primary
and secondary school students. In this year, we focused on enhancing students’ family cohesion and communication and
organised parent-child workshops, family outing and regular parents’ meeting sessions for students and families. Furthermore,
we mobilized different community resources and provided tailor-made a variety of programme activities to needy children
and their families. A total of 739 service recipients were served in this year.

Apart from the “After School Care and Support Programmes”, the Society also rendered the “Neighbourhood Support Child
Care Project” in Sai Kung and Tseung Kwan O that provided a flexible day care service for children aged under 9 years old.
Through this service, we have developed networks among families in the community and promoted their mutual support.
They were also mobilized to participate in community education to advocate for proper child care and prevention of child
neglect. The service also continued our promotion and education programmes in the district with the themes “neighbourhood
support” and “taking proper care of children”. In view of the increasing demands for infant care, concerted efforts were
made to recruit and train up child carers to take care of them. In 2016-2017, we served over 272 infants and children with
more than 56,900 service hours. We would continue to explore community resources and recruit child carers to support and
release the child care stress of the needy families.
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The service provides temporary family care to children who
cannot be adequately cared for by their families due to various
family problems or crises. Children in need can enjoy family
life and proper care until they can be restored home or have
other long-term care arrangements.

Children will be matched with foster families who provide
24-hour family care. Supervision and support are offered to
foster parents to ensure quality of care and to facilitate adjustment
of foster children. 3 months after care service will also be provided
after their discharge.

Children of both sexes aged from 0 - 18.

Provide 24-hour family care to the children in need.

* Due to the insufficient foster families, children in need
could not be cared properly. Hence, continuous efforts on
promotion and recruitment of foster families were made.
Promotion at social media such as fans page and google
site were also established.

* Besides, collaborating with Social Welfare Department and
other foster care agencies, the “Task group on Promotion
and Recruitment” was formed to establish the strategies on
promotion and recruitment of foster families.

» To enhance foster parents’ care quality, in-service trainings
were inevitable. Topics included Filial therapy, Seminar
on Learning Difficulties, nutrient and life education etc
workshops were launched.

» Support Groups in New Territories West, East Kowloon and
West Kowloon were established to provide mutual support
and enhance care quality of foster parents.

* Foster children usually come from families with complicated
problems, they were in need of special care and support.
Programmes such as Art Fun Day, mentorship program,
musical appreciation, self-esteem enhancement and buffet
were organized in order to meet different needs of the foster
children.



it A1

c BRTBHEARERNEEER  MPERRIERERA
A IS BEARAR  HKimit &= TiF 2 EmER
% AEERERUTRARAREHNIIN FFEELEE
HEAXRBHEIARMEITHRERSIEHMIT REE
flaBMERT S, —£8/NE BRAFERERIZIFHE
RATRBIRES] °

Y oG

THMZERm ZIBBE—FHESHVRR A REH—EARE T MR RIERIE

Collaboration with the Community

* Apart from collaborating with different corporate and charity

groups such as the China Gas Holdings Ltd, SmarTone
Communications Limited, the Rotary Club of Channel Islands
and Ronald Lu & Partners etc, we had collaborated with
the Department of Social Work and Social Administration
— HKU and started a pilot project on “Expressive Art” to
enhance foster children’s capacity on handling emotional
and behaviours.

- 5 o8

Award Ceremony for outstanding foster care children and gathering with their family

RGBT

Foster parents participated in food workshop
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Foster parents and children participated in “Thanksgiving to our beloved persons” activity
to celebrate the Christmas
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Circle painting to express acceptance, enhance cooperation and stimulate creativity
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A joyful exposure for foster children
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The service aims to offer temporary family care to young children
who need to be removed due to an emergency when no family
or relatives are able to assume the childcare responsibilities.

Children in need will be matched with emergency foster homes
and admission for care will be arranged as early as possible.
Supervision and support are provided to emergency foster parents.

Targeted Users
Children of both sexes aged from 0 - 18.

Service Delivery
Provide 24-hour family care to the children in need.

Service Highlight

Recruitment of Foster Families

* Make use of media, such as newspapers and social media
to promote Emergency Foster Care Service.

Training and Retention of Foster Parents

* To enhance foster parents’ care quality, training on
“Understanding Mental Health” was launched.

» Provide pre-service training for newly recruited foster
parents.

» Apart from the monthly home visits to support and retain
the foster families, the “tea gathering” was launched during
Lunar New Year to share their sweets and bitters in fostering.

Group picture after the talk on “How to cooperate with family with mental illness” for Emergency Foster Parents
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The Society has continued to provide Centre-based and School-
based After School Care and Support Programmes to primary
and secondary school students in different service units to
assist students :

* To receive proper after school care and nurturance.

* To strengthen their study motivation and skills for learning.
* To expand their learning experiences.

» To motivate children with good learning habit.

* To strengthen their interpersonal relationship and self-confidence.

* Primary school students whose parents or carers are unable
to provide proper care for them after school.

* Students from deprived families including primary and
secondary school students.

Through after school care service and provide trainings (e.g.
group activities, learning classes, tutorial, developmental and
recreational activities, visits, community services, parents
gatherings, parent-child activities, etc) to cultivate the
development of children. Escorting, lunch and school service
in some centres.

* Provided tailor-made community-based after school care service
for the targeted students to enhance their study motivation.
Supportive programmes were also designed according to the
needs of the community.

* Provided child care assistance for working parents or families
facing crisis or having difficulties in looking after their children
so as to minimize the risk of children unattended at home.

* Designed different programmes including volunteer service,
social skill training, team-building activities and multiple-
intelligence activities etc to facilitate the development of
children.

* Strengthened the support for students with special education
needs through individual counselling and group training, and
closely cooperated with other service units, so as to enhance
the effectiveness of the support as a whole.

* Provided regular meetings with parents and worked together
with their families to understand the statuses of the students.

* Provided continuous on-job training and support for tutors
to ensure the services quality and address the demand from
parents.
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Children and parents joined family trip to enjoy their happy moments
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Children concentrated to finish their homework
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Children participated in team-building games to learn team spirits
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The “Neighbourhood Support Child Care Project” (NSCCP)
aims at providing a flexible form of day care service for
children aged under 9 to meet the needs of the parents at the
neighbourhood level. It also aims at promoting the spirit of
mutual help at neighbourhood level in the community.

Working parents or parents with urgent needs in Tseung Kwan
O that cannot render childcare to their children aged below 9.

* Home-based child care as provide service for children aged
under 9 at the carer’s own residence or a suitable place
approved by the operator.

Centre-based care group offers close attention to children aged
3 to 9 by organizing interesting, creative and social activities
for children in a group.

We continue to offer quality child care service in Sai Kung and
Tseung Kwan O District to foster mutual help and care in the
neighborhood.

Through collaboration and networking with the Social Welfare
Department, Maternal Child and Health Centre, and schools,
publicity and education work were arranged to promote the
importance of “not leaving children unattended” and “taking
proper care of children”.

Kept on recruiting more carers in the community so as to
accommodate the increasing enquires and new cases of the
service.

Provided regular training on children health and home safety
so as to enhance the child care ability of the carers.

Regular mutual support programmes and mass family programme
were held for carers and parents, so as to enhance their physical
and mental health well-beings, as well as promote mutual help
spirit.
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Carer had lunch with the child
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Carers and service users participated in the Family Day Camp
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Carer pictured with the child
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Last year, apart from providing stationing School Social Work Service and Integrated Children and Youth Service which
are subvented by the Social Welfare Department, we have launched different service projects with the sponsorship from
corporates, government departments and partners.

Our Artiste Training Alumni Association Jockey Club Tseung Kwan O Youth Square and stationing School Social Work
Service for more than 40 primary and secondary schools are major platforms to reach out to and serve youth in need.
Through casework, groups and programmes, and different service projects, we helped youth and their families to enhance
their capability to overcome difficulties and challenges. Last year, under our School Social Work Service, we provided in-
depth counselling for 2,556 youth and their families, and also 2,776 group and programme sessions for students in general.
Our Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre has provided a wide range of services with a total number of 719 group /
programme sessions and 40,000 attendance.

Mental health issues among the youth population aroused public concern. We expanded one of our service focus “Net
Education and Counselling Service” to “Adolescent Mental Health Service" in response to the need. Throughout the year,
we strengthened our communication with school teachers and parents to facilitate early identification of the youth in need.
At the same time, we launched some new initiatives such as the "Mind Your Mind Adolescent Mental Health Project",
school-based volunteer service, talks and groups on mental health issues, parent-child adventure-based day camp, etc. so as
to strengthen the mental health of youth and their families, enhance their resilience, problem-solving, stress management
skills and strengthened their social support network. In the coming year, we will continue our work and provide more
comprehensive school-based support services under this service focus in the coming year.

In 2001, we piloted the “Pilot Peer Mediation Project" in secondary schools to equip students with peaceful conflict resolution
skills. In July 2016, we had the 15" Accreditation Ceremony of Peer Mediation Project to celebrate the achievements of in
mediation education for youth. In March 2017, we put joint effort with the Rotary Club and organized the first "Secondary
School Peer Mediation Competition" in Hong Kong. Our "Hang Seng - HKFWS Youth Mediation Scheme" for primary
school students also entered its fifth year. This project received different local and international awards in the past year,
including “Outstanding Partnership Project Award 2016/17” under Caring Company Scheme of HKCSS, “Gold CSR Award”
of The 12th China Golden Awards for Excellence in Public Relations, Silver winner of Mercury Awards 2016/17 under the
category “Campaigns — Corporate / Commercial: Corporate Social Responsibility Practices” and “Silver Award” in Corporate
Social Responsibility of The 3rd Hong Kong Public Relations Awards (2016) organized by Hong Kong Public Relations
Professionals’ Association Ltd. Besides, we conducted credit-bearing course and certificate course on peer mediation for
teachers and teachers-to-be in the Hong Kong Education University to enable them to promote mediation education in
schools. These achievements have reassured our efforts and innovation, as well as our collaboration with different partners
for service enhancement.

The project “Let Us Shine - A Journey to Success”, which was sponsored by HSBC, was completed in November 2016.
Through the project, we helped the youth to explore their potential and understand their career choice and develop their
paths to success. Over the past two years, we reached out to 104 secondary schools and a total of 100,000 attendance to
programme activities was recorded. In September 2016, we organized a bazar “Dream Catcher” to provide youth with the
opportunity to get a taste of running their businesses. In 2016, we also completed the project “Life Master” sponsored by the
Home Affairs Bureau with success. A new project “Ignite” will be launched with funding from the Bureau to carry on the
initiative to provide life goal planning services for students

With the increasing number of students with Special Education Needs (SEN), we continued to conduct emotional management
groups and “Art @ Life” life goal planning groups for SEN students to acquire the knowledge on career planning. Besides,
we also developed “executive skill training” and expanded the service scope of Social Thinking® to serve students with
Hyperactivity and Attention Deficit syndrome, Autistics and students having severe social barriers.

In the coming year, we will continue to focus on developing our “Adolescent Mental Health Service”, “Peaceful Conflict
Resolution Service”, “Life Goal Planning Service” and “Service for Special Education Need”. We will engage more partners
and stakeholders to expand the scope of our services and to benefit more youth and their families.
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The Society provides school-based stationing service and a variety
of service projects to more than 40 primary and secondary schools
in Hong Kong. The service objective is to facilitate students’
personal growth, potential development and problem solving
capabilities, and to support those in need.

Targeted Users

Primary and secondary students and their families.

Service Delivery
Casework, groups and programmes.

Service Highlight

» The Society provides school-based stationing service,
including counselling and supportive services to more than
40 secondary and primary schools in Hong Kong to enable
their psycho-social adjustment. In this year, 3,419 cases
and 2,919 programme sessions were rendered in secondary
schools.

Actively launched life goal planning with funding from HSBC
and Home Affairs Bureau through diversified intervention
means like DIY trade fair, traditional handcraft workshop,
mock interviews etc, for youngsters’ to pursue their goals.

Echoed the social phenomena of youth suicide and Policy
Address 2017, mental health education was widely promoted
to youngsters, parents and teachers to enhance youngsters’
resilience.

Continued “Healthy Use of Internet — One Stop Hotline
and Online Support Service” with support from Education
Bureau, further collaborations were expanded to other
stakeholders such as Education Bureau Moral, Civic and
National Education Unit, Guidance and Discipline Unit,
HK Correctional Services, Mary Help of Christians Chinese
Province. Message of healthy use of internet was significantly
highlighted to public.

Continued the “Peer Mediation Project” and “Peace and
Mediation” education to primary, secondary and tertiary
schools and continued the “Hang Seng - HKFWS Youth
Mediation Scheme” to further promote mediation education
in society. Four awards had been obtained to recognize our
efforts in peace work.

Promoted social inclusion culture among schools under the
integration education policy. Besides service for Special
Education Needs students in general, some specialized service
packages were developed for Autistic Spectrum Disorder
and Hyperactivity and Attention Deficit Students.

Continued the Healthy School Programme in 2 schools with funding
support by the Beat Drug Fund in order to early identify and to
intervene those at-risk students through preventive programmes.
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List of Schools Served

ADFD of POHL Leung Sing Tak
College

Belilios Public School

Buddhist Yip Kei Nam Memorial
College

Cheng Chek Chee Secondary
School of Sai Kung & Hang Hau
District, N. T.

Christian Alliance SC Chan
Memorial College

Clementi Secondary School

CNEC Lee I Yao Memorial
Secondary School

Cotton Spinners Association
Secondary School

Henrietta Secondary School

The Mission Covenant Church
Holm Glad College

HK Chinese Women’s Club
College

HKMLC Queen Maud
Secondary School

The HKSYCIA Chan Nam
Cheong Memorial College

Kiangsu-Chekiang College
(Kwai Chung)

Kowloon Tong School
(Secondary Section)

Kwun Tong Maryknoll College

Lok Sin Tong Ku Chiu Man
Secondary School

Madam Lau Kam Lung
Secondary School of
Miu Fat B.M.

Po Kok Secondary School

HHCKLA Buddhist Ching Kok
Secondary School
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Participants made dishes of their hometowns
together with local students to facilitate inclusion

of new arrival students
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Po Leung Kuk Lee Shing Pik
College

POCA Wong Siu Ching
Secondary School

POH 80th Anniversary
Tang Ying Hei College

PHC Wing Kwong College

Pui Kiu Middle School

Queen’s College

Rhenish Church Pang Hok Ko
Memorial College

Sik Sik Yuen Sponsored
Ho Fung College

St. Joseph’s College

St. Louis School

St. Paul’s College

St. Stephen’s Girls’ College

STFA Lee Shau Kee College

STFA Tam Pak Yu College

STFA Leung Kau Kui College

Tsuen Wan Public Ho Chuen Yiu

Memorial College

TWGHs Chang Ming Thien
College

United Christian College

Ying Wa Girls’ School

Evangel College
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Successfully assemble a DIY raft in a leadership training camp
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The Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre (ICYSC)
is situated in Tseung Kwan O district. Service objectives are:

* To develop potential of youth and help them to adapt to the
changing environment.

* To cultivate young people’s sense of concern for the community.
* To build up a caring community for youth.

» To provide support for youth at risk and in disadvantaged
circumstances.

Targeted Users
Young people aged 6 - 24 and their parents.

Service Delivery
» Developmental and interest groups.

* Volunteer training and services.
* Counselling and enquires.

* Life skill training.

* Outdoor Activities.

* Parents and teachers training.

Service Highlight

* Project “Be friend with ‘DEATH’ ”, with funding support
from The Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent
Cemeteries, was implemented in order to facilitate open
discussion and reflection on life and death. Its aim was to
develop positive life value through different groups, visits
and community education activities.

* Youth Square started to provide Primary School Guidance
Service (PSGS) for POH Chan Kwok Wai Primary School this
year, including PLK Wong Wing Shui Primary School, Youth
Square delivered PSGS for 2 schools and “Understanding
Adolescent Project” (UAP) for 3 schools in the community.
Support services for students with SEN in different primary
schools were also provided to echo the need of children and
parents.

» With the support from Sai Kung District Council and Social
Welfare Department, and the cooperation with more than 20
community partners since 2009, “Peace Begins at Home”
project continued to train volunteers to be Community “Peace
Ambassadors” in order to cultivate message of peace and
zero violence in families and the community. The project was
completed in January 2017.

» To facilitate children and youth to explore and develop
their talents in creative art, “TEEN Art @ Sai Kung” was
organized for the sixth time with the support from Sai Kung
District Youth Programme Committee. The theme this year
also echoed the need of mental health awareness. Participants
were encouraged to express their emotions through Circle
painting and Zentangle.



CEFVFRBEHREBEMNAE  FSFEIHEIBEPLAY’SHY * Youth were given chance to demonstrate their talents in art
2016 F B ERE A 2BITETLEEIE L RaB FE A E— TG performances. The drama group “PLAY’S” had their annual

e = RS = performance with 4 drama shows in Kwun Tong A2 Theatre
Egﬁﬁi}q{\ }fj:ll,—%ﬂf_*iiﬁoﬁ AERR HLz T e R Theatre m in 2016, sharing the story about seeking path and
AL e direction in the darkness.

cBAEETFEAEITANEBERETE - FFHIRHERKF -« To promote students in developing and actualizing their life
BT — B RN EREEE) OO IR RIS S goals, Youth Square continued to conduct a series of life
SkRBEER T E B ERAIET 4RI RIR L RS D goal planning and career development programmes. These

! N SERATsE 871 g3 - A programmes included self-directed search (SDS), soci-
HE R LR B REET) BRI AR games, career exploration activities, workshops and various

Ht .

%fi o career talks, so as to strengthen the self-understanding and
career-understanding of youth, as well as enhance their
learning motivation.

AR FEETFIHEEHEEEENBERSIE B " ZE - Partnering with the Hong Kong Productivity Council, the
NT RS DFRRERSE] > BhES SR A N “VG Experience Sharing Programme” for secondary school
ST RAHEEE I 55—3 TE5EruEs) IBEs students was continued to be organized. Through local and
FANEEMRBIRITRES

China visits and sharing with the senior staff of the Council,
participants widened their perspectives in life goal planning.

"Be friend with "TDEATH s —4E @R EiIRERZ ik s SHEIEE NESEH B L REED
Life and death community education programme in Project “Be friend
with ‘DEATH’ ”

'S TEENZ{REERA  PRHBSVFENES  B5LERRFS#
Youth’s artworks were demonstrated in “TEEN Art @ Sai Kung” art
experiential day

EEEIE PLAY’ S - 2016 F EBEIUSFEATE
The drama group “PLAY’S” had their annual performance with 4 drama
shows in 2016
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Peaceful Conflict Resolution Services
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Group photo of winners and the judges
of the first “Secondary Schools Peer
Mediation Competition”

In response to the increasing conflicts among youngsters, our
Peaceful Conflict Resolution Services aim at strengthening
adolescents’ ability in resolving interpersonal disputes in a
peaceful and constructive way, and building up a positive
non violence culture in schools and community through
launching the “Peer Mediation Project”, “Peace and Media-
tion” Education Series, “Life Cycle Mediation Project” and
“Help Increase Peace Programme” (HIPP) in different schools
and the community.

Targeted Users

Youth, parents, teachers and relevant professionals.

Service Delivery

Training courses, Workshops, Talks / Seminars, Training for
relevant professionals.

Service Highlight

* After the celebration of 15th anniversary of the Peer Mediation
Project, 15 secondary schools continually joined the Project
and about 180 students were trained as Peer Mediators to
promote peaceful conflict resolution in schools as well as in
the community.

* In collaboration with Rotary Club, the first Secondary Schools
Peer Mediation Competition in Hong Kong was launched. 18
schools joined to promote the mediation education.

* Entering the 5" anniversary, the “Hang Seng - HKFWS Youth
Mediation Scheme” was added into more initiatives and the
Scheme demonstrated significant effectiveness.

1) 350 pupils from 20 primary schools were trained up as Peer
Mediators.

2) Schools actively promoted mediation by attending the
Mediation Video Competition.

3) The Scheme won 4 regional and international awards including
the Outstanding Partnership Award 2016/17 of the Caring
Company Scheme by HKCSS.

e The Education Burecau awarded our Society to conduct
mediation trainings in 10 secondary schools to train up about
120 students as Peer Mediators.

* Conducted credit-bearing course and certificate course on peer
mediation in Hong Kong Education University for teachers
to facilitate their consolidation of mediation education in
schools.

* Trained ethnic minority primary students to be peer mediators
to extend the service to non-Chinese speaking groups.

ME4 - Kigs D EREETE
EEAMLERBHE "ERE
BAIR  2016/17FE R IBHE

MRS ERTEL 88
“Hang Seng - HKFWS Youth
Mediation Scheme” received the
‘Outstanding Partnership Award
2016/17° in the Caring Company
Scheme of HKCSS
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The “Career Development” service was launched in 2005. In
2011, we expanded the service focus to “Life Goal Planning”
by integrating our current clinical strength in Cognitive
Behaviour Therapy (CBT) and the group work model of “Career
Development”.

Targeted Users
Youth from age 6 - 24.

Service Delivery

Career and education seminars, talks and workshops on career
development, summer internship package, exchange programmes,
Soci-Games, career guidance consultation.

Service Highlight

* After Project “Life Master”, with the support from Funding
Scheme for Youth Life Planning Activities (2016-2018) from
Home Affairs Bureau, Project “Ignite” continued to serve 30
schools on Life Goal Planning activities.

* Learning from the experiences in Project “Life Master” and
facing with the changing needs in career development service,
we enhanced our services in the following areas:

* At first, two books, namely “My Dream Dairy” and “Life Goal
Planning: Atypical Cook Book”, were published to introduce the
Life Goal Planning Service and its effectiveness.

* Secondly, we have included the use of Personality Dimension®
in Project “Ignite”, the application was mainly in parents and
teachers workshop. By increasing their self-understanding, it
was hoped to equip their communication skills and achieve
the goal of better parent-child or teacher-student relationship.

* Lastly, invited by Wenweipo, a column named as “Life Master”
has been generated this year. Articles written by professional
social workers in Youth Service Sectors help to share their
views from various perspectives concerning the current trend
of Life Goal Planning Service in Hong Kong.

TBRMSS R, (BR "EEAREFEE  (7)5 B L a0
ABER TEEARE WS ERER  BBE REREME
HEE B E M A A E RS RS
“My Dream Dairy” (Left) and “Life Goal Planning: Atypical
Cook Book” (Right) introduces Life Goal Planning concept from
an innovative angle, allowing students, parents and teachers to
grasp the concept in an easy and funny way
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Adolescent Mental Health Service
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Participants of school-based volunteer services prepared handmade gifts
to their classmates and teachers

Our service promotes positive mental health for youth and their
families. We aim to prevent youth with mental health difficulties
by helping them to improve resilience, problem solving and stress
management. Strengthening youth’s resources building skills
and social networks, to cope with developmental challenges.

Targeted Users

Youth and their families.

Service Delivery

Talks, groups, volunteer services, exhibitions, parent-child
programmes.

Service Highlight

* Mind Your Mind Adolescent Mental Health Project adopted an
approach based on a positive view of mental health, aimed at
engaging and empowering youth and their families to improve
mental health.

Talks and groups with cognitive behavioural intervention
skills, enhance youths’ mental health knowledge and help
them cope with stress as well as to face developmental
challenges.

School-based volunteer services provide chance for youth to use
the positive mental health knowledge to prepare handmade gifts
to their classmates and teachers. Throughout this give and share
process, youth are helped to enhance their self-efficacy.

Parent-child adventure-based day camp stressed on communication
and appreciation between parents and youths, strengthen the
social support network for youth.

A series of exhibition on positive mental health help to enhance
youths’ self-awareness and knowledge on their mental health,
encourage help seeking so that early intervention could be made.

:? . il
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Participants strengthened their knowledge in adolescent mental health
through game booths and exhibitions



AERN2004FHERRTE SRR S LHHIEME L
K R AR R RORE - AR B O F RIS IR - MR
MLHERRISE o

Ak 75 8 =

FOFERERK

Al %% #2 =0
BB RIESHIEIRS -

Ak #5 & 2k

c AEREBPXABUHGETERREE BT FLEME
RS E IR R ERR ) % BIhEHR 71,561 {2 ER
tafIAY 1,233 U KRR - ARMNSA7TARITRG G HE5
BIRRIE S (E IR BIR S M FT A R - FETE » FPITRNe5
BloOBEMMERRAERIZMERR -

- RIBAEMEAVBFIRMERE > BRE "1CC - AppHLR
FEHENX,  REEHD ERRBLEEBDERRR
BHITHERENR REREE/NE - UBREBXHEFD
FrRBRRLEM -

EBERNFHHUEREME BEBRNEE RRR
HEMIEE "HELPSZEME, RS SEHER
#% ~ WhatsApp3z & ~ #ENEH - RRBEERBPLHE
BRE o  AFEHIZERIF25E @ #EIT1,168X#8
SIERTE - B HHER I TS RSB REHNFE
g 0 BRFEAXEEIRS,000 0

- BYERBERERNEM  HIHE  BRE B
B REGEELE D ERESORTRSRRAME
# o ETAOBBEREBENT  HREEHE it
T ®HAR  RERSE  TEOEREIE LA
BIEOR RABIEBIE - SIAREB2.200A ¢

- MBREBEEPERRRBGME  ETKELRE
MERNZERANRRRIEE » WINHENHEE - REH
MABNEFERNREELTRE -

- RERRTERB L FRBXILREERRBEEE &
AN T 202 B ERA T TH, KE, 0 REERS
BERARREDE LGSR o tob - JFIHT TRERE
AEEEEE LR T&, KEASHE - HEs/ N BER
R YERSHEAE AR

"% BEREER

Our Society has been developing this service since 2004 with
the aim of arousing public concern in internet problems, like
net addiction and cyber-bullying, preventing youth-net-problems
to reduce the generation gap in the digital era.

Targeted Users

Youth and parents.

Service Delivery
Educational and preventive service.

Service Highlight

* With the support from Department of Social Work, CUHK,
our Society conducted a research on “A Study on Youth’s
Digital Usage Habit in Relation to Family Relationships”.
There were 1,561 students and 1,233 of their parents involved
in the study. Our partners and public media attended our
research released on 7" May. Furthermore, we participated
the HKCSS Convention 2016 to share our research result
on 10" May.

» According to the research findings and recommendations,
we developed a parenting model, namely “ICC — App
generation parenting model”, to support parents helping
their children to develop healthy online habit effectively.
Relevant seminars and groups were conducted in our centres,
schools and Department of Health Student Health Service.

* With the support from the Education Bureau, our Society
stepped into the sixth year in launching the counselling hotline
on healthy use of internet students, parents and teachers.
Services included counselling hotline, online support via
WhatsApp, teachers’ trainings, parent programmes and
online resources. To support parents and teachers in nurturing
students with concept on healthy use of internet, 1,825
hotline calls and 1,168 WhatsApp were made, 3 teacher
trainings and 56 sessions of parent education programmes
were conducted, with over 5,000 service users were served.

» Upon invitation from Education Bureau Moral, Civic and
National Education Unit, Guidance and Discipline Unit,
HK Correctional Services, Mary Help of Christians Chinese
Province and various schools and organization, 40 sessions
of Net Education programmes with the themes of handling
net addiction, cyber-bullying and online risks were delivered
to over 2,200 participants.

* To strengthen the cooperation with Department of Health
Student Health Service, we conducted a professional sharing
for their medical professionals and 6 parents’ education
programmes. We enhanced the referral mechanism, in order
to early identify and serve the needy families.

* To reduce the digital generation gap, 20 students were trained
as Net Ambassadors to enhance parents’ understanding on
youth online culture and promote healthy internet use in
schools and community. Also, we conducted a “Healthy
Lifestyle Experiential Camp”, our Net Ambassadors were
trained as mentors to support primary schools pupils getting
rid of online addiction.
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Our social workers, parents and young people shared their tips on building of cohesive family relationship with app generation
in the Family Month
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Professor Wong from Chinese University of Hong Kong shared the findings of “A Study on Youth’s Digital Usage Habit in
Relation to Family Relationships”
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Internet Learning Support Programme - WebOrganic
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Members (primary school
students) were trained to
be the volunteers to lead
the game booth and deliver
messages of  anti-cyber
bullying and healthy use of
internet to the public

Government conducted the five-year Internet Learning Support
Programme. Our Society has joined the “WebOrganic project”,
which organized by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service,
to operate the Community Service Centre in Central and Western
District and the Hotline and Counselling Service.

Our project aimed at helping deprived families to learn at home
and to handle the net-related problems.

Targeted Users
* Deprived families in Central and Western District.

* Families suffered from net-related problems and lived in Hong
Kong Western Region.

Service Delivery

* Assist the needy students and families to purchase computers
and online service with budget plans, and to provide technical
support.

* Net Education talks and workshops.

* Enquiry, Counselling and Referrals.

Service Highlight

* Our project aimed at providing variety of services, including
technical support and introducing up-to-date [.T. technology
to meet the e-learning needs of low income families.

* Conducted 150 sessions of computer training and workshops
for 1,577 participants. Topics included healthy use of internet,
basic computer knowledge, prevention of online crisis and
ways to enhance family relationship.

* 401 participants were served in the community and school
programmes for the promotion of the project, healthy use of
internet and e-learning.

* Conducted volunteer training for primary school students’
members and led them to serve in the community and to
deliver messages of and healthy use of internet and anti-cyber
bullying.

* Counselling and referral services were provided to families
in need and helping them to handle issues related to the use
of internet and offered timely intervention for urgent or crisis
cases.

* “Mentorship Programme” was held in which 10 mentors and
15 mentees were recruited. Mentors from universities taught
the mentees the knowledge of healthy use of internet and
design e-portfolio.

BREREREZSFREEN
B

Teaching the members to
make VR boxes to experience
the new technology
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Service for Special Education Need (SEN)
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Under the integrated educational mode, more and more students
with special education need are allocated in mainstream schools.
In order to facilitate their adjustments and personal growth, some
programmes and groups are tailor-made to address their needs.

Targeted Users

Special Education Need students and suspected SEN cases and
their parents, including special learning difficulties, attention
deficit and hyperactivity, autistic syndrome etc.

Service Delivery
Casework, groups and programmes.

Service Highlight

* Enhanced psycho-social adjustment of SEN students by a
variety of supportive services and individual counselling.

» Continued to run emotional management groups and “Art@
Life” life goal planning groups for students with SEN to
facilitate their learning through the use of art facilitation.

* Began to launch new initiative on “executive skill training”
for those students with Hyperactivity and Attention Deficit
syndrome.

» Expanded the service scope of Social Thinking® for those
Autistics and students having severe social barriers. Besides
group work on interpersonal relationship for junior forms
and colleagues’ relationship for senior forms. Intensive care
plan was rendered to address specific social needs.

A series of parental work has been launched to support parents
with SEN children, including talk, life goal planning group,
Social Thinking® group and stress management group.

» Launched social inclusion talk and booths to promote the
acceptance of students with SEN in school culture.

* Provided a variety of services to primary schools for students
with SEN to enhance their concentration, reading and writing
skills and study skills.
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Participants’ artwork from“Art@ Life” life goal planning groups
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A parent talk on life goal planning tips for parents with SEN children
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Let us Shine - A Journey to Success
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Teaching workshops on running business by HSBC volunteers

The Project “Let Us Shine - A Journey to Success” was sponsored
by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. It
aimed to enhance youngsters’ competence in stress management,
setting life goals and identifying their potentials. Thus they can
actualize their dream and define their own success in future.

Targeted Users

Secondary students with Special Education Need, low motivation
and sitting for Hong Kong Diploma of Secondary Education
Examination (HKDSE), and also their parents and teachers.

Service Delivery

Groups, educational talks, training workshops for parents or
teachers, career visits, as well as mentorship programme with
corporate volunteers.

Service Highlight

* The Project “Let Us Shine - A Journey to Success” was
sponsored by HSBC. It aimed to enhance youngsters’
competence in stress management, setting life goals and
identifying their potentials. Thus, they could actualize their
dream and determine their own success in future. Project was
launched from September 2014 to November 2016, which had
served 104 secondary schools and over 100,000 beneficiaries.

* Life goal planning group, interest development group, sharing
and mock interviews by Corporate volunteers were organized
to widen youngsters’ horizon and to build up their assets for
future.

* A trade fair named “DreamCatcher” was launched for
youngsters to integrate their learning on running business,
customer skills and risk management into real practice.
Besides knowledge and skills, good personal qualities were
also important for attaining a success.

» Life coaching workshops were provided for parents and
teachers to offer support to youngsters.

» Some publications were made to share the project outcome
to sector, teachers and public, including a booklet on facing
HKDSE, a booklet on shining stories of SEN youngsters, as
well as a planner on life goal planning.

HSBC €

(g

BERFHEEBENZEER  AFBAR
Sharing from a popular artist, Mr. Alfred Hui Ting Hang on his life goal planning
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Understanding Adolescent Prqject (Primary School)
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Understanding Adolescent Project (Primary School) provides
Primary 4 to 6 students with developmental courses to equip
them with knowledge, skills and attitude to brace for adversities
and to encourage them to face potential challenges positively
when they are growing up. It includes 3 important elements:

Sense of Capability - To strengthen students’ ability in
problem solving and difficulty tackling and hence enhance
their confidence and self-image.

Sense of Belonging - To strengthen students’ support network
so that they can get support and help when facing difficulties.

Optimism - To cultivate positive thinking style and methods
in handling emotions so as to face challenges positively and
resist adversities.

Targeted Users

Primary 4 to 6 students and parents from Tseung Kwan O
Methodist Primary School, Po Leung Kuk Wong Wing Shu
Primary School and Pok Oi Hospital Chan Kwok Wai Primary
School.

Service Delivery

Group training, Day Camp, Overnight Camp, Voluntary service,
Parents workshop, Parent-child activity, Parents and teachers’
sharing session.

Service Highlight

* With close cooperation and support from principals and
teachers, we continued to run this project in 3 primary
schools in Tseung Kwan O district.

* Gratitude is a significant element to enhance the resilience
and sense of optimistic of children. Gratitude helps students
to give thanks to people and situation around then, and thus
reduce negative thoughts. Students were encouraged to share
the people or things they appreciated in every activity.

BEEEMR BE—R2MRFAL -
I am delighted about my father’s participation in
the family day camp!

EHMASTERVER BRI AL EZATHEARL

After trying many times, we can balance on the board finally!

77 O—
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Elderly and Community Support Services
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Thanks to the advancement of medicine and technology, the life expectancy of people is getting longer. In response to the
ageing population, and the health condition and different needs of the elders, our Society provides a variety of services to
support families to take care of them so that elders could stay living in the community with quality of life and dignity.

For elders with good health condition and do not require nursing support, our Senior Citizen Centre (Kowloon City) has
dedicated to promote and facilitate them to lead a healthy life style. For example, we have launched the “Healthy Kowloon
City Project” and “Happy Sheep-Therapeutic Group on Insomnia”, and also the “Grand Move Project” which is a joint
venture with the Sau Po Center of Ageing of the University of Hong Kong. To encourage life-long learning and community
participation, we organized 328 programmes and groups serving 800 members and 152 carers. A men’s group, namely
“City-land for Men”, was set up and provided a platform for male elders to interact with each other. Moreover, a total of
148 seniors were engaged as volunteers to offer support in our programme activities and daily operation of the centre. It
has demonstrated that, with opportunities provided, elders could contribute their talents to serve the community. Besides,
we co-organized programmes with different corporates and organisations in the community, such as“Be Healthy, Be Smart”
Fun Fair, to promote cross-generational integration as well as the positive image of the elders, and to facilitate public
understanding on the elderly.

Effective home care and community care services can help elders living in the community to receive timely care for their
changing needs in health and care. Elders with mild impairment can maintain daily functioning through the support from these
services. For elders with moderate or severe level of impairment, these services help them to postpone health deterioration
through rehabilitative services and nursing care. The family members can also receive relevant training and support to
strengthen their skills and confidence in care-giving. Last year, we served 3,647 “Ordinary Case” and 235 “Frail Case”
under the Integrated Home Care Service as well as 1,154 cases under the Enhanced Home and Community Care Service.
To proactively review and improve our service model, we joined the Sau Po Center of Ageing of the University of Hong
Kong to release the "Report on Study on Enhancement of Integrated Home Care Service" and shared our experience with the
sector. The study result confirmed the effectiveness of integrative intervention of both home based support and centre based
activities can help service users enhance physical functioning and mental health. It can also promote their health awareness,
development of healthy life style incorporating exercising habit as well as social support to meet their psychosocial needs.

Our three Viva units have kept on meeting individual needs through providing self-financing services with more flexibility
and service choices comparing with the Government subvented services, serving a total of 246 cases last year. Our
professional team, comprised of social workers and health care professionals, offered professional training for government
departments, schools, community bodies and non-government organizations. In addition, our Cho Yiu Centre, North Point
Centre, and Shun Lee Centre have become recognized operators of the “Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service Voucher
for the Elderly” Phase II, offering more flexible service packages. The elders and carers can receive home based service and
day care service at the same time and can be supported by temporary residential respite service when necessary.

Viva Shun Lee Centre joined the “Jockey Club Community ‘eHealth Care Project’” which is a three-year project funded by
the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust. In collaboration with CUHK Jockey Club Institute of Ageing (IoA) and various
NGOs, the project aims to encourage the elderly to enhance self management skills and obtain a better understanding to their
health status through the use of electronic technology.

Sponsored by the Hongkong Bank Foundation through the Community Chest of Hong Kong, the “Smiley Activation Project
- Community / Home-Based Depression Treatment for the Elderly” (SAP) helped frail elders re-build community connection
and problem solving ability and raise community awareness on elderly depression. This Project provides Smiley Activation
Programme, Anti-Depression Care Line for the Elderly, outreaching booths, community education programmes and volunteer
trainings. Last year, we recorded a total attendance of 4,096. With the continuous funding support of Community Chest, this
project will be extended to 2018 to support more people in need.

With sponsorship from the “Faith ¢« Hope ¢ Love” Movement, our Dementia Assessment Service continued to provide
comprehensive assessment for the elders with dementia symptoms. Partnership was established with medical institutions /
professionals to offer early diagnostic assessments and free clinical tests. To raise community awareness on dementia, we
also launched photo competition, volunteer training, community mobile counters, educational talks and workshops with a
total attendance of 2,092. The service components will be further enriched in next year with funding support from the Tsu
Te Kian Charitable Trust.

In this ageing society with longer life expectancy, the elderly population also has higher education level and better financial
condition, and they pay more attention to their health condition. The elders and carers will have higher expectation on the
variety and quality of services as well as their choices and autonomy in obtaining the services. Our Society will continue to
enhance our services through innovation and synergies with different partners to serve the ever changing needs.
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Integrated Home Care Service
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To enable the elders and those who have difficulties in daily
functioning to remain living in the community.

Targeted Users

Elders aged 60 or above, the disabled, individuals and families
with social needs.

Service Delivery

Provided a wide spectrum of home care and support services by 8
Integrated Home Care (IHC) teams e.g. nursing care, rehabilitation
service, home safety and advice, home modification, personal
care, escorting service, day respite, child care, laundry, meal
delivery service, purchase of daily necessities, house cleaning,
psycho-social intervention etc. and referral service etc.

Service Highlight

+ To strengthen the social contact of our service users and their
carers who always stay at home, they were encouraged to
participate in our groups and programmes, such as interest
groups, exercise groups, outdoor activities and festival
cerebration programmes etc to meet their psychosocial needs.

* To promote community care and to facilitate cross-generational
integration, we collaborated with different organizations
and corporate partners to organize a variety of volunteer
services for our service users.

* We organized a wide range of trainings to our frontline
staff (e.g. occupational safety, clinical waste management,
communication skills for clients with depression and emergency
drill) and professional staff (e.g. basic understanding on
Chinese medicine for treatment on common diseases for
elderly) to enhance professional knowledge and skills in
home care services and support to carers.

RERBARBEBEEEMEFOAIE TENEEESFEIEE,

"REBERILH2016, - REZZEBNEXER
Project GrandMove with Sau Po Centre on Ageing - The University of Hong Kong Elders enjoyed feast in Intergenerational Harmony in Winter
Solstice 2016
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Enhanced Home and Community Care Service
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Service users and their carers of Islands EHCCS Team were sponsored by the
Chevalier Group to visit the Trick Eye Hong Kong and enjoyed buffet with
corporate volunteers

Enhanced Home and Community Care (EHCC) Service is one
of our essential elderly services. Home and community care
support is provided to elders suffering from physical or cognitive
impairment. We also support their carers, in order to empower
elders who desire to live in their own home.

Targeted Users

Elders aged 65 or above (aged between 60 and 64 may receive
the service with proven need); who are classified as having
a moderate impairment level or above by Standardized Care
Need Assessment Management Office.

Service Highlight

» The service operation contract of our Enhanced Home
and Community Care service (EHCCS) teams at Kwun
Tong, Tsuen Wan and Islands districts will be extended to
February 2019, while the contract of Sham Shui Po team
will be extended to February of 2021. We will continue to
review and improve the service mode, manpower modality
and service workflow in response to the changing service
need and future development.

 To support carer is one of our service focus, including “On
Site Carer Training” to strengthen their knowledge and skills
in daily care, rehabilitation exercise and cognitive training.
Meanwhile, we organized various carer support programmes
such as health talks, group activities and outdoor programmes
so as to enhance the well-being of carers.

* We always encouraged service users to participate in our
centre-based programmes such as pain relief activities,
exercise groups and other treatment groups to meet their
individual needs.

2016 FEF AR E R E5R L JEED
Christmas Party 2016 and Christmas caroling
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Senior Citizen Centre (Kowloon City)
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Located in Kowloon City, the Senior Citizen Centre provides
services for elders with a recreational and learning environment
to expand their social network and develop their potential. The
service also aims to enhance relationships with their families,
and their knowledge of community resources available to them.

Targeted Users
Elders aged 60 or above, Carers of the elderly.

Service Delivery

* Counselling, home visits, outreaching, consultation and
referrals.

» Therapeutic and developmental groups, learning and interest
classes, talks.

* Visits, tours, festival activities and mass programmes.
* Lending and purchasing service of rehabilitation aids.
* Lunch service.

Service Highlight

* Our gratitude to corporate volunteers and nearby primary
schools for their support to the “Be Healthy, Be Smart” Fun
Fair to enhance public awareness for dementia.

* Implementing “Healthy Kowloon City Project” in the
community to promote healthy diet and express concern to
the deprived and needy elders.

Meeting the psychosocial needs of the elderly by conducting
different kinds of therapeutic groups by social workers, such
as group for the elders with insomnia and reminiscence
therapeutic group, etc.

+ Conducting a series of Life and Death educational programmes,
including life review group and life journey talk, to encourage
the elders and carers to break through the taboo on discussing
death as well as affirming their life’s value.

Fostering intergenerational harmony by implementing various
programmes with corporate, schools and NGOs.

Organizing diverse volunteer groups and services for the
elders with different abilities and interests and conducting
Volunteer Award Ceremony at the end of the year to recognize
their effort.

* Developing Men’s Group to broaden the male elders’ social
circles and develop their strengths and abilities.

IR B T RarahaE
E:y)

The dancing class performed in the Volunteer Award Ceremony, audiences gave
them a big applause to recognize their talent and effort

BRI

EfFIRA R

—R SR R ERE—E BERENT

The Men’s Group members celebrated the Lunar New Year together
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Flexible Day Care Service

Most of the frail elders living in the community are house bound
and lacking psycho-social activities because of their limited
mobility. Apart from our home-based care services, the Society
also provides centre-based training and therapy at Tai O and
Shun Lee Health Centres. By providing escorting service for
frail elders from their homes to the centres, the frail elders can
enjoy rehabilitation and pain relief services as well as group
training with other elders so as to meet their rehabilitation and
psycho-social needs.

Targeted Users
Aged 60 or above frail elders.

Service Delivery

Day care service, rehabilitation treatment, individual consultation,
acupuncture and consultation by chinese medicine practitioners.

Service Highlight

» With the joint effort of the Society and the HKU Sau Po
Center of Aging, “Report on Study on Enhancement of
Integrated Home Care Service” was published. It reflected
positive result in developing awareness of health prevention,
doing regular exercise and meeting psychological needs,
with improved daily functioning through regular exercises
with proper design and intensity. The project concluded
the effective model integrating home care and centre based
intervention to support the elders to stay in the community.

Based on the findings of the Study mentioned above, we
improved our flexible day care service. Our centres in Hong
Kong Island and Islands districts carried out the modified
version of Happy and Healthy (Hn’H) exercise groups with
positive effect. We will keep exploring flexible service modes
to facilitate physical and psychological well-being of our
service users.

MEREETTIZ SEthRIRL  EEN VEREASER (RARSBEEEED)
Graduates of Health Enrichment group (Hn’H Exercise Group)
(Sponsored by Tai O Heritage Hotel)

EFREENTRIFEY - R LBER DA A REEERR 2 BT

Using exercise ball to strengthen balance
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Carers Support Service
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Carer support is one of the essential elderly services. This service
helps to relieve the burden of carers. Through the provision of
talks, programmes and material resources, we aim at promoting
the well-being of the carers, as well as to arouse the awareness
of the public on the needs of the carers.

Targeted Users

Carers for the elderly, including family members, relatives,
volunteers and neighbours.

Service Delivery

Carers training, providing information, lending of rehabilitation
equipment, day respite service for the elderly, etc.

Service Highlight

In response to the needs of frail elders and carers in the
community, we continued to actualize our service philosophy
of “Supporting Family to Care for the Elder”. Apart from the
regular service, e.g. educational talks, day respite, loan of
rehabilitation equipments and audio visual materials, we organized
various activities to support elders and carers. Through positive
experience in joining our programmes, elders and carers can
share joy, concern and support.

BNERBCEN —&F  HEETELE

Participants dressed up to celebrate Christmas

—ERZIRGEAE!

Let's sharing with Joy and Love!
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Community Rehabilitation and Pain Relief Station
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Acupuncture treatment by registered doctor
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The Community Rehabilitation and Pain Relief Station
provides pain relief service to the elderly suffering from pain,
e.g. arthritis, muscle pain, acute pain etc. in order to enhance
their ability in daily functioning.

Targeted Users

Elders of 60 or above with pain problems.

Service Delivery

There are 4 Service Centres providing these services including:

* Rehabilitation Exercise (Individual or Group Format).

* Individual Physiotherapy Treatment.

* Individual Consultation.

» Acupuncture and Consultation provided by Chinese
medicine practitioners.

» Hong Kong Eastern (Oi Tung) Centre.

» East Kowloon (Shun Lee) Centre.

* New Territories (Tivoli) Centre.

* Lantau (Tai O) Centre.

Service Highlight

Responding to the needs of frail elders in the community, our
professional team consisting of Registered Chinese Medicine
Practitioners, Registered Doctors with acupuncture training
and Registered physiotherapists continued to render individual
or group service for relieving pain; launch health talks on pain
management and rehabilitation of elders at discounted price.

FREERMIE A 2 24Tk

The Chinese Medicine practitioner take the pulse for the elder
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To encourage customer choice in service delivery as well as to
fill service gaps in the current sub-vented service system, we
have been operating our self-financed service Viva (formerly
named as “health care centre”) in Hong Kong Eastern district
since 2009, and has extended our service to Tsuen Kwai Tsing
districts. “Viva”, connotes long life with wellness. We aim to
promote physical and psychological well-being of the elderly
and their care-givers through a range of professional, flexible
and quality service with professional support from social work,
allied health as well as care workers.

Targeted Users

* Elders and persons in need of day care service or rehabilitative
care service (e.g. patients discharged from hospital).

» Caregivers (e.g. family members, relatives and friends,
domestic helpers).

Service Delivery

 Day care centre (e.g. basic nursing care, rehabilitative exercise &
cognitive training, therapeutic group).

* Home - based rehabilitation and care (e.g. basic nursing care,
rehabilitative exercise & cognitive training, personal care).

* Home care (e.g. elder sitting, escorting, household cleansing).

* Caregivers support (e.g. training on care skills, support group,
purchasing rehabilitative aids).

Service Highlight

* Three Viva Centres have successfully become the service
providers of the “Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service
Voucher for the Elderly” in Phase II starting from 10/2016.

* Viva Cho Yiu Centre has received the sponsorship from the
Sir Robert Ho Tung Charitable Fund to carry out “Viva Master
Mind Project” to improve the physical and cognitive function
of the hidden and frail elderly.

» To fulfill the service development and needs, Viva has a
new post of Programme Workers who have the professional
qualification of Physiotherapy Assistant. They could receive
the on-site job coaching and subsidies for further studies.
They could also contribute and apply their knowledges in the
rehabilitative process of the frail elderly.

» Health Care Professionals of Viva continued to provide
health related trainings or talks to government departments,
corporates and schools.
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Our Social Worker with qualification of Certified Dementia Care Planner conducted a cognitive training group
for the Hong Kong Housing Society Healthy Village Elderly Centre

LY SRR AT EEEZE SR M TIASTBIERE  TIE
Our Physiotherapist conducted the “Pain Management in Office Workshop” to the Hong Kong
Housing Authority

/

"RE&Eint = REAARISZSHERET 8 ) A A EE A AMEEH OIS
The voucher holder of the “Pilot Scheme on Community Care Service Voucher for the
Elderly” enjoyed the day care service
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In view of ageing population, more elders and caregivers
face mental health issues. This service aims to support elders
to cope with their stresses in their old age and caregivers in
handling their caring stress by different interventions. The
service components include:

* Elders and Caregivers Psychiatric Consultation Service.
* Mental Health Group for Older Adults.

¢ Dementia Assessment Service.

Targeted Users

» Elders and Caregivers Psychiatric Consultation Service:
Older adults aged 55 or above with signs of mental health /
emotional disturbance who have never been or are reluctant
to go to hospitals / clinics for consultation.

* Mental Health Group for Older Adults: Older adults aged
55 or above with emotional disturbance / stress.

* Dementia Assessment Service: Elders aged 65 or over with
signs of dementia.

Service Delivery

* Elders and Caregivers Psychiatric Consultation Service:
One-off free consultation and referral service (if suitable)
by our volunteer psychiatrist and social worker.

* Mental Health Group for Older Adults: A 12-session treatment
group using cognitive-behavioural therapy through variety
of activities and learning to use different perspectives to
manage emotion / stress.

* Dementia Assessment Service: Certified Dementia Care Planner
or professionals with equivalent training, provide detailed
assessment to elders with signs of dementia using international
validated instruments, to facilitate early intervention.

Service Highlight

» Elders and Caregivers Psychiatric Consultation Service: Our
volunteer psychiatrist and social worker continued to offer
one-off-free consultation and referral service (if suitable) to
seniors with signs of mental health / emotional disturbance
showing reluctance from hospitals / clinics to seek timely
and formal consultation.

* Mental Health Group for Older Adults: A 12-session treatment
group was conducted for elders, adopting cognitive-behavioural
therapy through a variety of activities to learn different
perspectives to manage emotion / stress.
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* Dementia Assessment Service, Dementia Care Planning Service

and Dementia Community Education: With the support from
the “Faith « Hope * Love” Movement, our Certified Dementia
Care Planners or professionals with equivalent training
provided detailed assessment to elders with signs of dementia
using internationally validated instruments, to facilitate early
intervention. Partnership was established with some medical
institutions / professionals to offer early arrangement in follow
up diagnostic assessments / and free clinical tests. Besides,
Certified Dementia Care Planners provided comprehensive
assessment on caregiver’s needs and assisted them to better
face the challenges of caregiving journey. We continued to
promote Dementia Community Education. Programmes such
as photo competition, volunteer training, community mobile
counters, educational talks and workshops were conducted to
raise community awareness on dementia. With funding support
of Tsu Te Kian Charitable Trust, we will further enrich the
service components next year.
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A volunteer introduced the symptoms of Dementia to the general public. (Community Mobile

Counter)
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The elders enjoyed their time in the interactive cognitive training group. (Elderly Cognitive

Training Group)



EEMRIE - REMIE[EETE

Smiley Activation Project - Community / Home-Based Depression Treatment for the Elderly
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This project is supported by Hongkong Bank Foundation
through a donation to The Community Chest of Hong Kong from
October 2015 to September 2017. It aims to raise community’s
awareness of elderly depression, assist the rather home-based
older adults to rebuild connection with the community, learn
problem-solving skills and enjoy in pleasant activities to reduce
their depression symptoms and improve emotional well-being.

Targeted Users

« Treatment-oriented “Smiley Activation” Anti-depression
and Self-Management Programme: Elders aged 60 or above
with depression symptoms.

* Other promotional and educational programmes: General
Public.

Service Delivery

Concerned visits, community programmes, life skills practice,
service referrals.

Service Highlight

Funded by Hongkong Bank Foundation through The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, Smiley Activation Project — Community
/ Home-Based Depression Treatment for the Elderly (SAP) was
launched in October 2015 for 2 years. The Project aims at raising
community awareness on elderly depression and encouraging
withdrawn elders to reengage the community. It treats frail /
home-restricted elders with depression through enhancement
of problem-solving, engagement in pleasant activities to
reduce depression and improve emotional wellbeing. Multiple
intervention strategies include an §-session outreaching Smiley
Activation Programme by social workers, an Anti-Depression
Care Line for the Elderly managed by our trained volunteers
to make calls to elders; community educational programmes;
outreaching booths as well as volunteer trainings and circulation
of educational leaflets to raise community awareness on elderly
depression. With different support, the Project was conducted
smoothly. The first batch of research results indicated that the
Smiley Activation Programme can reduce level of depression
of the participants and the result is encouraging.

Besides, this project has successfully received funding support
from Community Chest to extend its service one till September
2018 for serving more elders in need.
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Elders cultivated their interests in art and managed their emotions in art workshop

BREEIENRRE REFHOMEREIIRREOE

Identified strengths of elders: The elder shared her cooking wisdom with the volunteers
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Let’s start dancing and lift up your mood!
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Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project
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Viva Shun Lee Centre joined the “Jockey Club Community
eHealth Care Project” (the Project) which is a three-year project
funded by the Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, ear-
marked HK$138 million, in collaboration with CUHK Jockey
Club Institute of Ageing (IoA), Senior Citizen Home Safety
Association (SCHSA), and various NGOs. The Project aimed
to encourage the elderly to build self-management habits and
gain a better understanding of their own health through the
use of electronic technology.

Targeted Users

* Aged 60 or above and living in the community

+ Elderly living alone /elderly couple with hypertension or diabetes

* Priority will be given to those with high risk of hypertension,
diabetes and overweight elderly

Service Delivery

The Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project consists
of three main components:

* Tele-care programme: When elderly log in the e-health
system with their smart cards, they will be assisted to
conduct measurement of blood pressure, blood glucose
and weight by trained staff or health workers. This data
will be transmitted for real-time monitoring and analysis
via cloud-based technology with follow up by nurses over
phone calls. Regular centre visits were provided by a multi-
disciplinary team of nurses, health workers and social workers
to share health information with the elderly.

* Well-being surveys: IoA supported the elderly participants
in carrying out regular well-being survey, focusing on their
psychological, cognitive, and social well-being. Targeted
for around 10,000 respondents in total, it is hoped that the
findings will help elderly centres get a more comprehensive
picture on service needs and design suitable programmes and
services.

* Big data analysis: [oA will analyze the data collected from the
tele-care programme and well-being survey to understand the
health status of the elderly population as well as the related
trend in Hong Kong.

Service Highlight

* Viva Shun Lee Centre successfully recruited 100 elderly
living in the community to join the Project. They were able
to have better understanding on their health condition, such
as oral health, hearing and visual ability, memory, mental
health, drug management, and daily self care etc. We also
launched health talks / groups, fitness exercise classes based
on the needs of elderly, to encourage them to have regular
exercises and proper diet as well as participate in community
activities.
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In contrast to the common passive approach in understanding
one’s own health condition among elderly, the participants
were encouraged to visit centre regularly to measure their
blood pressure and blood glucose. They were facilitated
to develop a good habit in health management through
uploading health data via cloud based system and electronic
technology which enables professionals to better grasp
necessary information and take follow-up action.

RTRRBRRRES

Nurse delivered monthly health reports to the elders

REBBEHBEMEREL
The elder learnt to use the eHealth Station
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The Society launched various innovative services and projects in response to the social needs and to fill the service gaps. To
serve the up-surging number of divorced families, we were supported by the HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity Programme
through the Community Chest to start a two-year project “Child-focused” Separation & Divorce Crisis Prevention & Man-
agement Project” to provide mediation services for low-income divorced or separated families. The project also provided
“Child-centred Play Therapy” and “Filial Therapy for parents” to promote parenting in divorced families. Moreover, "A
Beam of Hope — Pilot Project on “Child-focused” Parenting Coordination and Co-parenting Service for divorced Families,
which was sponsored by the Community Chest, entered into its second phase. Through consolidation of the experience in
the first phase of the project, we continued to promote and facilitate divorced parents to develop “co-parenting partnership”
to take care of their children.

The service for divorced families has further expanded and a “Child-focused” Children Contact Service was launched in
September 2016 with support from the Social Welfare Department and sponsored by the Lotteries Fund. The service was oper-
ated in our newly set up Parent-child Contact Centre located in Lai Chi Kok since 31 October 2016. It provided Supervised
Children Contact / Exchange Service for separated / divorced parents and their children so that the non-residential parents
could maintain stable contacts with their children and to sustain / rebuild their relationship. This new service marked a mile-
stone in our divorce services and also reflected our commitment to meet the service gaps for divorced families, especially
issues related to children.

In January 2017, we established a Financial Education Centre to help young people equip with financial knowledge and de-
velop their proper financial habits. We also obtained funding support from the HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity Programme
to launch a five-year “S-QUBE - Youth Financial Empowerment Project”. In the project, we introduced the financial social
work model from the United States and taking into the local situation to provide systematic professional training for social
workers of youth service. Besides, we organized different experiential activities, edutainment programmes, intensive group
work and individual coaching and make use of social media to help young people develop positive financial values. Moreover,
we continued the “Smart Kids” Money Management Workshops, "Get $et Go Money Management Workshop" and "Teaching
Your Kids About Money" with the support from the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and Investor Education
Center. There were a total number of 100,000 youth and parents beneficiaries being served through these initatives.

For Women Service, we continued the three-year “The Bridge to Competence Project” supported by The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Charities Trust Community Project Grant to enhance women’s self-esteem and self-image, and expand their social
network through a series of programmes. Moreover, the Women and Family Enhancement Centre continued to implement
the Education and Support Project for Multi-generation Families supported by Lee Kum Kee Family Foundation to provide

support and community education to address the needs of multi-generation families.

The Society’s Wellness Programmes actively promoted Employee Assistance Programmes to improve the wellness of employ-
ees. A variety of corporate trainings were organized to propel corporate development and enhance staff morale. Throughout
the year, we cooperated with 57 corporate partners to organize 116 progammes and nominated 51 companies as "Caring
Company". Last but not least, we recruited 3,393 volunteers who contributed 16,003 hours to serve 63,719 service users. A
Volunteer Recognition Ceremony was held on 1 April 2017 to celebrate and award their contributions.
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The Society launched Family Mediation Service in 1997 and set
up the Mediation Centre in 2001 to coordinate and promote our
Family Mediation and Community Mediation Services to resolve
disputes between divorce couples, family members, couples,
peers, neighbours, colleagues, etc. The Centre is also dedicated
to provide mediation training for professionals and mediation
education for the general public to foster a harmonious community.

Targeted Users

* Mediation Service: people facing disputes.
* Mediation Education: general public.

* Mediation Training: relevant professionals.

Service Delivery
* Mediation interviews.

* Educational Talk and Seminars.
 Training programmes.
» Legal Consultation Services.

* Training of accredited mediators and peer mediators.

Service Highlight

* To implement “ ‘Child-focused’ Separation & Divorce Crisis
Prevention & Management Project” sponsored by the HSBC
150th Anniversary Charity Programme through the Community
Chest of Hong Kong. It is targeted to serve the families in
need, especially those from the low income group and sandwich
class, aiming to help the couples at the edge of separation /
divorce to arrive at peaceful settlement in relation to divorce
by Family Mediation Service and to serve the families with
young children by adopting a child-focused approach, i.e.
“Child-centred Play Therapy” for “Children and Filial Therapy
for Parents”. It is further geared to render Mediation Education
to enable family members to apply mediation concepts and
skills in dealing with conflicts / disputes in the family context.

* Conducted Continuing Professional Development Programmes
for Family Mediators and General Mediators.

* Conducted live supervision for accreditation of Family
Mediators.

* Participated in the coaching for Mediation Courses accredited
by HKMAAL.

» Cooperated with various social service organizations,
universities and schools to conduct mediation trainings to
create and sustain the impact of a pro-mediation culture.

» Continued the implementation of the Peer Mediation in 25
secondary schools and the “Hang Seng - HKFWS Youth
Mediation Scheme” in 20 primary schools.



EBFBEEIFHE 2016
CPD Seminar on Family Mediation Practice in Hong Kong 2016
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CPD Seminar on Mediation Skills of Removing Emotional Obstacles
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BT BERRERRRE 2017
Filial Therapy Group for Parents 2017
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There has significant increase in the number of divorce in the past
ten year. In order to assist those children from separated / divorced
families to rebuild the relationship and to maintain stable contact
with both parents in a safe, conflict-free and neutral environment,
sponsored by the Lotteries Fund, we have launched a 2-year pilot
“Child-focused” Children Contact Service in September 2016.
The Parent-child Contact Centre has also come into operation
on 31 October 2016 to support the service delivery. Separated /
divorced parents will be facilitated to develop “child-focused”
perspective and maintain stable connection as well as rebuild
positive relationship with their children through the professional
Supervised Children Contact / Exchange Services.

Targeted Users

Separated / Divorced parents and their children.

(Separated / Divorced parents being unable to arrange children
contact / exchange on their own, and with consent of both
parents and their children can use the service).

Service Delivery

The Visitation Monitor (Register Social Worker) will provide
Supervised Children Contact / Exchange Service in the form
of casework or offer “co-parenting” group or training to needy
families and receive “Children Contact Helpline” to answer
enquiries related to children contact issues from the public.

Service Highlight

* To set up a clear referral and application mechanism to ensure
smooth referral from referrers and application of service by
needy families.

* To raise the community and the sector to get better understanding
on the pilot service, we have conducted over 30 service briefing
sessions with aims at facilitating cross sector communication
and collaboration.

» To provide on-job training to raise staff’s sensitivity and
develop expertise in children contact work.

* Professional Visitation Monitors will provide Supervised
Children Contact Service to those in need families through
supervising children to meet or enjoy the gathering time
with their non-resident parents or other family members; or
to arrange Supervised Children Exchange Service to those
parents who are having difficulties in children exchange to
facilitate the smooth exchange of children between two homes.

* To organize training / workshops for parents or families having
difficulties in co-parenting, and to help them understand the
impacts of divorce on children’s well-being, and learn to
practice “child-focused” co-parenting with aims at facilitating
healthy development and the well-being of the children.

* Through community education service such as talk, exhibition
and service promoting activities, raise public concern on the
needs of divorced families and promote to the community
the concept on “Parental Responsibility” and “Child-focused
Co-parenting” perspective.
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The Parent-child Contact Centre
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Parent-child Contact Circle
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A Beam of Hope - Pilot Project on “Child-focused” Parenting Coordination and Co-parenting Services for Divorced Families
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This pioneer project, which was launched in October 2013 with
funding support from the Community Chest, aims at facilitating
divorced / separated parents to develop a “child-focused”
perspective and to maintain a healthy co-parenting relationship
for the best interest of their children. The project also serves
the objective of promoting public awareness and support to the
“child-focused” co-parenting, and to foster “care and concern”
to these families.

Targeted Users

Divorced / separated parents and general public.

Service Delivery

Community-educational series and helpline, Piloted Parent-aide
Service training and therapeutic group for divorced parents,
counselling service and coordination service, Volunteer Training
Programme and Service, Professional Training Programme.

Service Highlight

* The project has been extended to September 2018 with continuous
support from the Community Chest due to its effective outcome
and able to echo the community needs. Through consolidating
the past practice experiences, to continue to promote to divorced
parents on developing “co-parenting partnership” to take care
of their children.

* Through conducting regular professional trainings and seminars
to various professionals such as lawyers, family mediators,
social workers, teachers and counselors, etc. to enhance their
understanding on the “child-focused” co-parenting concept
and to facilitate cross sector collaboration in promoting the
co-parenting values to the community.

+ Short-term Co-parenting Certificate Course, co-parenting therapeutic
groups, individual education and parenting coordination services were
tailor-made to divorced / separated parents to facilitate them to learn
“child-focused” co-parenting concept and to establish partnership
relationship for the betterment and welfare of their children.

¢ To train up youth from divorced families to provide “Buddies
Programmes” to support and encourage the children from
divorced families to develop positive coping and life value to
adjust to the new life in two homes.

* The “Parent-aide Worker” continued to offer skills coaching
service to divorced parents through individuals or groups and
provide community outreaching education programmes to raise
public awareness towards needs of divorced families.

THEZ M S35 TR

“Co-parenting” professional training workshop
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Women and Family Enhancement Centre
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The Society’s Women Service focused on sustaining development
of the “Bridge to Competence Project” sponsored by the Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and running some other services
and programmes to support the women targets, especially the
socially isolated and deprived:

» To develop a positive life attitude.

* To build up capacity and capability and to enhance self-
confidence, self-esteem and competence.

* To develop social network and strengthen connection with
the society.

» To enhance sense of belonging and community participation
s0 as to cultivate a mutual help atmosphere in the community.

Targeted Users

Women and their families, especially those with low educational
level, coming from poor or deprived families (e.g. Comprehensive
Social Security Assistance (CSSA) or low income families,
single parent families or new arrival families) or lacking
opportunities and social support.

Service Delivery

Services include groups and programmes, outreaching work,
network development within the community.

Service Highlight

* “The Bridge to Competence Project” continuously supported
by The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Community
Project Grant in 2016-2017 which aimed to enhance the
competence and empower the capability for women through
various of groups, programmes and activities. Besides,
the project also facilitated building up of support network
for women in need, and arouse community awareness and
concern to women.

* The “Education and Support Project for Multi-generation
Families” continuously supported by Lee Kum Kee Family
Foundation and served as the project coordination centre. The
project aimed to promote positive mother and daughter in-law
relationship in the community and to assist women facing
in-law relationship difficulties through varieties of tailor-made
education and support programmes.

* The “Love in Action” Carer Support Project for Women
funded by the Sir Robert Ho Tung Charitable Fund aimed
to facilitate carers to develop better self-care skills, stress
management and mutual help network through varieties of
groups and programmes.

* To support women in need, After-school Care Service continuously
funded by the Community-based Projects of the Education Bureau
and Social Welfare Department, the Centre has to provide free
after-school support services to primary students from low-income
and needy families to facilitate better time management after
school so as to relieve women stress in handling children’s school
work and enhance better parent-child relation.
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RSB LENESEE) B T H% A EETE), ' X5F® - The Happy Singleton Project funded by the HER Fund to
BREROGHEIFHE BAPEESLMABEF  enhance their self-image and confidence of Middle-age
FEMBED BB TIHEENTHREERIEET Women through various self-growth and oral story workshops.

B REEAMEHPFESLENEEIEE - The project also aimed at reducing negative labeling on
middle-aged single women through advocacy work and

social media platform.

Bk IMERIHEAEE % (Gender Day Camp)
ER&EH  EBIIEREI RSB MR EREE A R RARE R 2
PR 2MEBRITRMERE RN ERM

The camp was organized to promote a breakthrough in gender stereotype

B A8 BY g -
B Bzt Oil#E (Single Women Stories)

BRI RENES LN ESNE BEZARAREEE SR
EE AESTIEHMEIART S

Re-build the positive image of single women through sharing their life
stories in different platforms to educate general public to respect
single-women’s choices

BFABEE (Mutual Support Program for Single-mothers)

ERE B/ TR T RSB RE ISR E AR R BEXRE
T RN EE

Mutual support group for single-mothers would organize different programmes
and lessons in order to give support and mutual help for single-mothers
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Having been established since January 2017, the Financial
Education Centre is dedicated to promote financial literacy of
children, youth and parents through experiential activities, and
social media platforms. It also offers Financial Social Work
Certificate Training to equip social workers with the competence
in intervening service users’ cases in finance related matters.

Targeted Users

Children and Youth aged between 6-24 and their parents,
social workers.

Service Delivery

Mass simulation games and experiential programmes for youth,
Groups, Workshops and Counseling (Face-to-face or through
social media).

Training course and workshop for professionals.

Service Highlight

* With the support from HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity
Programme, the five-year project “S-QUBE - Youth Financial
Empowerment Project” has been launched. With the partnerships
with different stakeholders, we extensively developed
edutainment programs for secondary, tertiary students and
young apprentices. We also deliver intensive groups for
vulnerable youngsters including but not limited to students
with Special Education Needs and students at special schools.
We have also engaged students from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University to participate in the project through service learning.
Students had learnt financial knowledge through helping the
younger generations. We also organized talks, seminars for
youth and their parents, and utilized social media platform
to enhance their awareness and conveyed healthy financial
management message. During November, 2016 and March
2017, the Project has reached 97,617 beneficiaries.

» We introduced Financial Social Work Certification course to
Hong Kong from United States, the course had been endorsed
by National Association of Social Worker. We aim to lay the
foundation for the Society’s service development in financial
wellness in future.

* We continuously cooperate with Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority to deliver 45 sessions of “Smart Kids”
Money Management Workshops and Parenting seminars. With
support from Investor Education Centre, we also organized
“Get $et Go Money Management Workshop” for secondary
students and “Teaching Your Kids About Money” for primary
students and their parents.

With the support from Principal Financial Group, we launched
the project “Be a Smart Money Manager”. In the project, we
published a booklet for parents and had run children groups
on teaching students money management skills.

The programmes mentioned had served 3,043 children, youth
and parents through 78 sessions of programmes, talks and
workshops.
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[S-QUBE SHEIBM BB EIAEF B TIEY; HEZRITISORFRES
STEIEEY
S-QUBE - Youth Financial Empowerment Project Lunch and Learn Workshop
funded by HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity Programme

RRBIRRIRIL EERFROEH
Co-organized with Investor Education Centre Teaching Your Kids About
Money workshop

[S-QUBE. BFEEHHEBEEE KRB HESRITISOGEFEEEE
©ap
S-QUBE - Youth Financial Empowerment Project Parent Talk
funded by HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity Programme
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The Wellness Programme of the Society provides tailor-made,
fee-charging services that aim to improving individuals’
physical and mental health and enhancing their capacity in
overcoming and managing their personal, family or work
difficulties effectively. Services include:

Employee Assistance Programme (EAP): to deliver counselling
service packages for organizations in both the commercial
and public sectors to foster a caring organizational culture, to
enhance employees’ productivity and sense of belonging to the
company. Through hotline services and training programmes,
EAP serves to achieve early intervention, helping staff to
cope with life challenges and create better work-life balance.

Wellness Training Programme: to deliver trainings, seminars and
workshops by trainers with variety of professional credentials.
It aims to support corporations and education institutions or
teams to develop staff with proactive attitude and enhanced
solving, communication and people skills to facilitate more
effective and efficient teamwork.

Counselling and Clinical Psychological Service: to provide
fee-charging professional services including individual and
family counselling, pre-marital assessment and counselling,
personality assessment, children development assessment and
other psychological assessment and treatment. The objective
is to promote the well-being of individuals and support them
and their families in facing life challenges.

Corporate Volunteer Service: to promote cooperation between
the private and public sectors, and to facilitate integration of
different social strata and build a caring community through
services by corporate volunteers.

Targeted Users

Individuals, families, employees and their family members
in the organizations of the business or government sectors
and other NGOs that purchase the services.

Service Delivery

Individual or family counselling, small group, workshop, public
seminar, etc.

Service Highlight

+ Nowadays, long working hours and work stress have negatively
impact the emotions of the employees, which may also affect the
health and family relationship. In order to enhance employee’s
wellness, Wellness Programme has been promoting Employee
Assistance Programme. This year, we had introduced the brand
new Health Consultation Service to provide a holistic care for
them.

* In terms of Corporate Trainings, Wellness Programme provides
a variety of workshops to cater the ever changing needs in
the labor market. The workshops provide solutions to achieve
corporate development and enhance the employees’ morale
in the forms of retreats or training workshops.
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Couple carried out experiential activity in the workshop

* Inrecent years, workshops relating to individual and family
aspects are growing popular, which reflects the importance
of employees’ wellness as perceived by the corporates. In
the future, Wellness Programme will continue its advocacy
on healthy workplace and work-life balance.

+ In the past year, the government accounted for 10% of
the overall purchase of Employee Assistance Programme,
while the retail industry and property management industry
accounted for 30% and 7% respectively. For training related
services, 35% was from the private corporates, 40% was
from school, while 10% and 15% were from government
departments and NGOs respectively.

¢+ Our “Child Centered Play Therapy” and “Filial Play Therapy”
were both the renowned programmes at schools and for
parents. In the past year, we have collaborated with several
schools and centres to organize a series of parent workshops.
In the future, we will provide more topics and enhancement
programmes to cater the learning needs of the parents.

+ For marital counselling, Wellness Programme launched a
workshop for couple to promote the couples’ relationship and
their communication. In the future, we will strengthen our
promotions with the message of harmonious family through
different media platform reaching more couples.

=

B ERM TAKE, TEA RAB TS OEE
We provided “Laughter Yoga” workshop for corporates to enhance the
health of the employees

2SR "HFERAR ) RRENSR SR
Participants gathered at the last session of “Filial Play Therapy” Training for
group picture
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We dedicate our efforts to develop volunteer service
programmes, aiming to supporting volunteers’ personal
growth, enhancing their self-confidence and serving our
community. Besides, we mobilize corporates and organizations
to dedicate resources and manpower in charity work that
contributes a caring community.

To further promote the development of individual and family
volunteer service, we encourage our volunteers to attend
training so that they can be well equipped to serve the needs
of different groups in the community with advanced skills. We
set up award system to recognize volunteers’ contributions.

To strengthen the relationship with our corporate partners,
we provide corporate volunteer training and sharing forums
which serve as a platform where our corporate partners can
identify suitable volunteer service opportunities. We also
cultivate project development that matches with Corporations’
expertise and the community needs.

Targeted Users

Individuals, Families, Corporate, Government departments,
Schools and Volunteer organizations.

Service Highlight

Corporate volunteer service development

e The Central Volunteer Service Coordination Unit had
networked 57 corporations and voluntary organizations.
They were matched with 15 service units of our Society and
successfully organized 116 programmes to serve 2,651 users
with our joint effort. We had nominated 51 companies for
the caring company partnership, which was highest when
compared with previous years.

* We had organized different types of programmes that catered
the needs of children, youth and elderly. Through our services,
corporate volunteers showed their care to the needy. “Sharing
Heart Parent-child Volunteers Training Project 2016, “Festival
Meal for Intergenerational Harmony in Winter Solstice 2016”
and “Green Children-Eco-Protection Experiential Learning
Program”, sponsored by Standard Chartered Bank sponsored
a number of projects, aimed at training volunteers and youth
engagement and promote community communion. Besides,
Hong Kong Productivity Council has provided a platform for
our youth to visit different companies and manufactures, which
facilitated their knowledge to different workplaces and encourage
them to plan their careers.
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Central Coordination

+ This year, there were a total of 3,393 volunteers contributing

16,003 service hours to 63,719 service users. Amongst, there
were over 200 specialized volunteers which included volunteers
from Family Careline, “Net” Education and Counselling Service,
Financial Education and Family Ambassador, etc. With their
unfailing support, we received “Gold Award for Volunteer
Service” from Social Welfare Department recognizing our
contribution of over 10,000 service hours in the year.

Volunteer Recognition Day was held on 1 April 2017 at E-Max.
Over 200 volunteers and corporate volunteers had participated
in the event and received volunteer awards. At the event, one
of the Long Term Service Awardees in corporate volunteer
service, Mr. Quincy Chung, Founder and Managing Director, of
Magic Clean Environmental Service Ltd., whose company has
served in various services for over 8 years, shared his valuable
experience during the ceremony. He reflected that the services
and trainings had promoted colleagues’ mutual understanding
and strengthened teamwork in his company.
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The China Project was started in 1980s with the objective
to promote social work values and intervention strategies
for the development of social welfare services in China. The
Society is now rendering social work clinical supervision in
mainland China for the development of social work profession.

Targeted Users

* Social welfare and family services agencies / training institutes
in China.

 Social work students of tertiary institutions in China.

Service Delivery

Training, demonstration, exchange programmes, assisting
the relevant units in China to set up social services, and the
arrangement of placement or internship programmes for
social work students and social workers.

Service Highlight

Supervision

* We provided supervision for the respective frontline social
workers, intern social work supervisors and junior social work
supervisors in the Mainland China in order to enhance their
competence in social work theories and practice, help them
develop a localized work system, and to assist the development
of local supervisors.

» This year, we provided supervision to an Integrated Family
Service Centre in Baoan, Shenzhen and three community service
projects in Foshan to enhance social workers’ competence
as well as assist them in the set-up of management system
and development of service.

* Since April 2016, we have delivered individual and group
supervision to workers from an Integrated Family Service
Centre in Beijing to help them get a better understanding of
social work’s values and to enhance their competence in case
handling.

Invited by Dongguan Silong Government, we assisted their
youth workers to publish a set of comprehensive sex education
teaching kit for adolescents in Dongguan. Feedbacks from
teaching professions and parents were positive and encouraging.
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cBE—F - AENMNAETREREANINTETH [E - Training courses have been organized in the Mainland China
oL RES T TREEME M T E )RR a8 and Hong Kong for social service professionals from various

. 1B R R ISR provinces in Mainland China, which included training
*IEM%*ZE% I XREBES XERS ZEEE-B workshops on crisis management, peer mediation, domestic
= £ o

violence, family service, family mediation, and volunteer
management.

s AEIRE EYITHER AN TIRIEM, ~ TIEYITEEY ¢ Last year, we delivered professional consultation service to
REREDD, B UEYIFHIBA TREH D, 124t 3 social work agencies, 22 service units and 2 projects in

ERRE B EES S TR E LT e Shenzhen, aiming aF developing a formal gnd localizegl wgrk
system, a community-based family service and achieving

professional social work development.

Al URIRE RS M RS - RI%E AR CEITHE
HoMEHFTERFEHORETLFEL -
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We delivered professional consultation service to 22 service units and 2 projects in Shenzhen
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Provided training for social service professionals in Beijing on women services and volunteer management

REBFEHMRERMEERR  REmAREERRERAANEIRE B MR RS RS
Our senior social worker shared his experience on helping the local government construct a set of sex
education teaching kit for adolescents in a press conference in Dongguan City

s gin SREATAT

AER BRI EEILG TESRENEE: BRI "REEZE ) (FEERITRE
A 2-day workshop for social workers on family mediation was organized in Foshan in November, 2016. Our
worker demonstrated counselling techniques in mediation case training
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Benefactors Fund

The “Benefactors Fund” aims at providing timely financial
assistance to the service users of the Society with imminent
needs. Application has to be recommended by social workers
and approved by the Secretary of the Fund.

The Fund comprises 2 schemes, “the Grant Assistance Scheme”
and “the Loan Assistance Scheme”. In the year 2016-2017, the
Fund supported 104 needy individuals and families, mainly
on their basic living expenses, rent, furniture and psychiatric
treatment. The Fund did give a timely financial assistance to
secure the needy family.

CIS Khim Houng Lee Education Fund

The CIS Khim Houng Lee Education Fund was set up to pay
tribute to Madame Khim and to honor the teachers, parents and
students of the Chinese International School (CIS) who have
been making continuous support in fund raising and offering
tangible support to motivate the deprived students to continue
their studies. In the past years, the family members of Madame
Khim continued to make donation to the fund that had supported
needy children to continue their studies.

Similar to previous years, the fund has helped a number of
kids from kindergarten, primary and secondary students in
their educational ventures. In the past year, about half of the
beneficiaries came from single-parent families, who have
encountered financial difficulties in helping their children in
their studies.

Apart from funding support, students from the Chinese International
School also participated in voluntary service, such as arranging
tutorial classes for students from deprived families who have
difficulties in English learning and arranging visit to the elderly
home with the children so as to broaden their horizons and to
raise their concern to the society.

In the coming years, the fund would continue to offer support
to needy children.
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HOCC Education Grant

The Fund has been launched in our Society for seven years,
which has been sponsored by a Hong Kong pop singer, Ms Ho
Wan See, Denise, to offer financial subsidy to support deprived
children on their expenses related to studies.

In view of the increasing number of children with special
education needs, the fund has extended its coverage to support
the training needs of those children who are studying in the
primary and secondary schools. Similar to previous years, over
30% of the beneficiaries are student applicants who are with
Attention Deficit and Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD), dyslexia
and developmental delay, etc. With the support from the fund,
they have received proper training.

Among the beneficiaries, about half of them came from single
parent families.

In the coming years, the fund would continue to support
children so that they can continue their study.

Cross Generations Dream Fund

With the generous donation by LEE KUM KEE Family
Foundation as seeding fund, our society continued coordinating
with the Foundation on the operation of “Cross Generations
Dream Fund”. The Fund supported deprived and needy families
from cross generations to realize their dreams, promote family
relationship and quality family life.

A number of families were benefited by the Fund to realize
their “Dreams” in the pervious year, such as taking cross
generation family photos, organizing birthday party, worshiping
family ancestors, participating in family reunion activities ate.
The families came from various background including foster
care families, single parent families, new arrival families and
families with mentally-ill members. All these families have
very positive feedbacks towards the Fund.

The Fund has supported cross generations families until 31%
December, 2016. The mission “Love and Care” for cross
generations families would be enliven by the “Education and
Support Project for the Multi-Generation Families” to benefit
more cross generations families in need.
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PITEEERS
Report of the Executive Committee

HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SQCIETY

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee submits its report together with the audited financial statements of Hong Kong
Family Welfare Society (the “Scciety”) for the year ended 31st March 2017.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the Society is the provision of welfare services.

Business review

Main business
Hong Kong Family Welfare Society, established in 1949, is one of the major social service

organisations in Hong Kong. With a family perspective, the Society is committed to delivering quality
and professional social services to enhance the well-being of families and individuals in Hong Kong
and to foster a caring community.

The Society renders the following major types of social services for families and individuals through
its 42 service centres in Hong Kong:

a) Integrated Family Services —including 6 Integrated Family Service Centres, & Zonta White
House — Family Retreat Centre, and service projects to promote the well-being of families;

b} Mediation and Divorce Services —including a Mediation Centre, a Family Resource Centre, &
Parent-child Contact Centre, and “Child-foeused” Parenting Coordination & Co-parenting Services
for Divorce Families;

¢) Child Care Services - including Foster Care Service, Neighbourheod Support Child Care Project,
and After School Care and Support Programmes;

d) Children and Youth Services —including an Integrated Children and Youth Service Centre, School
Social Work Service for 40 secondary schools, a Financial Education Centre, and a variety of
seTvice projects to serve the developmental needs of young people;

¢) Elderly and Community Support Services - including an Integrated Home Care Service, Enhanced
Home and Community Care Service, a Senior Citizen Centre, Self-financed “Viva” and service
projects that address the mental health issues of elders and their carers; and

f) Special Services - including a Women and Family Enhancement Centre, Volunteer Service, and
Wellness Programme.

In the financial year 2016/17, the Society set up two new service centres: Parent-child Contact Centre
and Finaneial Education Centre. The former is supported by the Social Welfare Department ("SWD”)
through the Lotteries Fund for a two-year pilot project on children contact service from 2016-2018 to
facilitate the arrangement of children contact with separated/divorced parents and to strengthen
support for separated/divorced families. The latter, which includes a major project “S-QUBE Youth
Financial Empowerment Project” sponsored by HSBC 150th Anniversary Charity Programme in
2016-21, aims at promoting financial literacy and capability of children, youth and parents through
experiential activities, edutainment programmes and use of social media.



HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Business review (Continued)

Business review and performance analysis

The Society was financially stable with a slight increase in total income by 6% as compared with last
year. Its major source of fund was from the subvention by the SWD, including Lump Sum Grant
(“LSG™), which is 82% of the total income. The Society also got funding support from other
government departments and different kinds of project fund and charity fund, including The
Community Chest, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust and the Lotteries Fund Grant as well
as donation from individuals and corporates.

All along, the Society complies with the requirements stipulated in the SWD LSG Manual, Lotteries Fund
Manual and 16 Service Quality Standards. The Society has policies to ensure all units observe the relevant
legal obligations in their operation, including Employment Ordinance and Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, In 2014, the SWD introduced a new requirement, namely the Best Practice Manual (*BPM”),
and the Society has reviewed its policies and procedures to comply with the “Level One” requirements
stipulated in the BPM.

The Society has generally met the performance requirements agreed with its funders, including the Service
Quality Standards, Essential Service Requirements, Output Standards and Outcome standards set out by
the SWD. Besides, its services received positive feedback from service users.

During the year, the Society was granted different awards for its contributions:

a) The status of "Manpower Developer” (15t April 2016 — 31st March 2018) in the " Employees
Retraining Board (“ERB") Manpower Developer Award Scheme”;

b) "Award of 10,000 Hours for Volunteer Service” by the Steering Committee on Promotion of
Volunteer Service 2016 under the SWD;

¢) "Outstanding Award” and "Silver Donors Award” of "Corporate and Employee Contribution
Programme 2016/17 (“CECP”)" by the Community Chest;

d) Awards for the project “Hang Seng — HKFWS Youth Mediation Scheme™:

s  Silver Award in Corporate Social Responsibility in The grd Hong Kong Public Relations Awards
{2016) organised by Hong Xong Public Relations Professionals’ Association Ltd.,

»  Silver Winner in Campaigns - Corporate/Commercial: Corporate Social Responsibility Practices
at Mercury Pearl Anniversary 2016-2017 organised by International Academy of
Communications Arts and Sciences / MerComm. Inc., and

»  Outstanding Partnership Project Award in the Hong Kong Council of Social Service Caring
Company Scheme 2016/17.

Key Relationships

2) Members
Members of the Society are persons, corporates or institutional bodies who register and subscribe
to the Articles of Association and pay the annual subscription. At the end of the financial year
2016/17, the Society maintained a membership of 117.
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HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Business review (Continued)

Key Relationships (Continued)

b} Service Users
In general, service users of the Society are families or individuals who meet the eligibility criteria
for services of the Society and wish to use the Soclety's services, Apart from providing
appropriate services 1o its service users, the Society also promotes a family-friendly environment
and advocates policies which enhance family well-being. The Society continued to organise the
Family Month in May 2016 with a series of family-related programmes to arouse public concern
towards family well-being and advocate positive family values. Besides, the Society tock an active
stance in sharing their views and coneerns towards relevant social issues, government policies
and legislation, including “Retirement Protection Forging Ahead”, “Sexual Offences Involving
Childrer: and Persons with Mental ITmpairment”, and “Proposed Arrangement with the Mainland
on Reciprocal Recognition and Enforcement of Judgments on Matrimenial and Related Matters”,
“Elderly Services Programme Plan Consensus Building Stage”, ete.

During the year, the Society offered education, preventive and remedial services for more than
460,000 beneficiaries and provided intensive service for more than 20,000 individual and family
£LasEes. ’

¢} Staff
The Society maintained a work force of over 950 as at 31st March 2017, comprising professional,
management, administrative, frontline and support staff. The number of staff slightly increased
as compared with 2015/16.

d) Funders and External Partners
The Society has maintained close collaboration with government departments, funders and
strategic partners to put joint efforts in service provision to benefit the service users and the
community as a whole, During the year, the management staff served in over 130 committees,
panels, working groups, task force, Haison groups and network meetings of different nature set up
under the SWD, Home Affairs Bureau, Department of Justice, Social Workers Registration Board,
Hong Kong Social Workers Association, Hong Kong Council of Social Service and Hospital
Authority, etc., to advise on the development of social services, social welfare policies and issues
relating to the welfare of its service users and the community as & whole. All these efforts are to
actualise the Society's mission to promote the well-being of families and foster a caring
community.

Principal risks and uncertainties

With increased complexity in the external environment, it is inevitable that the Society is exposed to risk
which would affect its ability to achieve the planned cbjectives. To manage risks and to ensure sustainable
development of the Society, a Risk Management (*RM”} Policy and Framework has been formulated and
implemented since 2014. There was progress report to the Executive Committee on a regular basis to
ensure that risks are identified, appropriately assessed, mitigated and managed, and continual
enhancement of its services and operations is in place.

The Society had an overall staff turnover rate at 13%, which recorded a slight decrease as compared with
the figure of 16% Jast year. There was difficulty in the recruitment and retention of paramedical staff and
frontline care staff, As in the past years, the Society conducted regular monitoring of the turnover rate and
took different measures to tackle the issues, including annual review of the remuneration package to align
with the manpower market, and enhance the Human Resource initiatives and benefits to promote the
competiveness in recruitment and retention of staff, The Society had enhanced benefits of its Group
Medieal Insurance Scheme for staff,



HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE {CONTINUED)

Business review (Continued)

Future development
The Society will be celebrating its 7oth Anniversary in 201 and will take this opportunity to conduct a

Branding Revitalization Exercise in 2017~2019. Besides, the Society will strive to sustain and enhanee
its existing services and develop new initiatives to meet the changing social needs and demands. The
Society will continue to collaborate with the public and private sectors for better synergies in service
provision to serve families and the community.

Results
The results of the Society for the year are set out in the statement of comprehensive income on page 10.
Own funds

Details of the movements in own funds of the Saciety during the year are set out in notes 11 to 13 to the
financial statements,

Executive committee members
The members of the Executive Committee during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr Law Kin Chung, Christopher, JP (Chairman)

Dr Cheng Cheuk Sang, Arnold (Vice Chairman)

Mr Cheng Shee Sing, Patrick (Honorary Treasurer}

Mrs Cheng Yuen Pui Yan, Betty {resigned on 2gth November 2016)
Mrs Choy Pun Siu Fun, Verenica, MBE, JP

Dr Chung See Yuen

Mrs Lai Wei Kit Lin, Minnie, MH, JP

Mr Lau King Shing

Mr Law Sheung Ping, James

Miss Lee Yuern, Anita {resigned on 29th November 2016)
Miss Siu Wing Yee, Sylvia, JP

Dr Tang Sau Lim, Philip

Ms Leung Kit Kan, Ingrid (appointed on gth January 2017)
Ms Yip Yun Wan, Amarantha (Executive Director)

Mrs Cheng Yuen Pui Yan, Betty and Miss Lee Yuen, Anita resigned as executive committee members of the

Society of their personal accord.

In aceordance with Article 31 of the Society’s Articles of Association, the members of the Executive
Committee shall be elected annually from amongst the members of the Society in the Annual General
Meeting.

Executive committee members’ material interests in transactions, arrangements and
contracts that are significant in relation to the Society’s business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Society's business to which
the Sociely was a party and in which an executive committee member of the Society had a material
interest, whether directly or indircctly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE {CONTINUED)

Executive committee members’ interests in the shares and debentures of the Society or any
specified undertaking of the Society

At no time during the year was the Society a party to any arrangement to enable the executive committee
members of the Society to hold any interests in the shares or debentures of the Society or its specified
undertakings.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Society were entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provisions

A permitted indemuily provision (as defined in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Grdinance) for
the benefit of the executive committce members of the Society is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers whe retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

Law Kin Chung, Christopher
Chairman

Hong Kong, T‘l 8 0[:'[ 2{]17
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Auditor’s Report

pwc EPES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TGO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SQOCIETY
{Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Hong Kong Family Welfare Society (the “Society™) set cut on pages
g t0 44, which comprise:

. the balance sheet as at 31st March 2017

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. the statement of changes in own funds for the year then ended;

. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

’ the notes to the financial statements, which inclede a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Society as at 31st March 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordanee with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA, Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditer’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Society in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code,

Other Information
The Executive Committee is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Executive Committee’s report and the annual

report, but does not include the financial statements and cur auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, wwiw.pwehk.com 125
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY
(CONTINUED)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Other Information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears te
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard,

Responsihbilities of Executive Committee for the Financial Statements

The Executive Committee is responsible for the preparation of the financigl statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HRKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Executive Committee determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether cue to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive Committee is responsible for assessing the
Society's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Executive Committee
either intends to liquidate the Society or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so,

The Executive Committee’s responsibilities include overseeing the Society’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Respongibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it cxists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually ¢r in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY
(CONTINUED)

{Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain andit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Executive Committee.
. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Executive Committee’s use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Society’s ability t¢ continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 4 material
uncertainty cxists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Saciety to cease to continue as a going concern.

g Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the finaneial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

‘We communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

HongKong, '{ § QCT 2017
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Financial Report and Accounts

HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (i)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
(ALL AMOUNTS IN HONG KONG DOLLARS)

Government Subvention

B Source of Income U A
82.09%
Government Subvention
5 $314,380,078
I B
Lotteries Fund Grant
$13,145,309
155 e
The Community Chest
$4,567,000
N
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
N N $1,248,974
i ERIR GO
0.37%
Lottenes Fund Grant : :
Programmes, Projects & Donation
i = $48,232,549
Prograrr}l)mes, Projects & Lﬁiﬁ & > TEE A RARRK
onation :
JES) > HEETEA .
FeAHR The Hong Kong Jockey The COTF‘ unity Chest Other Income
12.59% Club Charities Trust A il $1,429,811
' FERE AL 119% A
gozgﬁ $383,003.721_
. 0 —_——
Employee Benefit Expenses
g SEF
Expenditure 7 79.16%
Employee Benefit Expenses
i $295,320,506
I R EHF
Programmes, Projects & Operation
. e $65,315,964
BB THEEHE R HEATERE S
Premises & Utilities
. $12,407,066
BRI
$373,043,536

Premises & Utilities

Programmes, Projects &

B Operation
3.33% Sl T
R HEITBHE
17.51%

Note : The Annual Financial Report (Lump Sum Grant) for the year ended 31 March 2017 that submitted to Social Welfare Department can be downloaded from the Society's
website : http://www.hkfws.org.hk.

i AGEHEEAIBRLZ “E—AE B CEEEESRECEER - CEEMER G - AF4EHL ¢ http:/www.hkfws.org.hk «
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HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY

(All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Non-current assels
Property, c{}lant and equipment
Trust fund assets

Current assets
Receivables from Lotteries Fund

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Fixed deposits with criginal maturity over three

months
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted bank deposits

Total assets

FUNDS AND RESERVES
Own funds

General Fund

Capital Reserve

Designated Funds

Total own funds

Other reserves and trust funds
Social Welfare Lump Sum Grant Reserve
Provident Fund Reserve

Subvented Employee Benefit Reserve
Soeial Welfare Subvention Reserve
Trust Funds

Total other reserves and trust funds
Total funds and reserves
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income

Current liabilities

Payables and receipts in advance
Home help deposits received

Provisions for unutilised annual leave and long service

payments
Deferred income

Total liabilities
Total funds and liabilities

Note

Chts

[l ot o T v a L |

11
i2

13

14(a}

14(b}
14(a} & (c}
15

16

17

18

17

As at 31st March
2017 2016
18,963,504 22,205,035
61,080,902 60,360,242
80,944,406 82,565,277
519,380 5,400,806
7,782,113 5,235,974
23,544,858 22,711,742
172,422,365 155,179,402
- 649,951
204,268,716 189,177,875
285,213,122 271,743,152
55,370,849 55,905,311
2,151,339 2,861,550
29,767,118 20,026,985
87,289,306 87,793,846
64,294,563 58,170,446
18,261,435 17,828,937
13,228,710 13,296,111
7,847,684 6,065,064
61,080,002 60,360,242
165,613,294 155,724,800

252,002,600

243,523,646

11,551,010 15,647,856
8,620,692 1,792,155
126,776 999,068
2,981,200 1,650,943
8,030,844 8,120,484
20,759,512 12,571,650
32,310,522 28,210,506
285,213,122 271,743,152

The notes on pages 13 10 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages  to 44 were approved by the Executive Committee on 18 00T 2017

Law 1n Chung, Christoph
Chairman
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HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY
{All amounts in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenne

Government subvention
Income from Lotteries Fund — Block Grant
Income from Lotteries Fund — Special One-off Block

Grant

Income from Lotteries Fund — Social Welfare
Development Fund (“SWDF"}

Income from Lotteries Fund - General

Backpayment from Social Welfare Department (“SWD”)

Home help fees

Donation funding for specific projects from:

- The Community Chest — Baseline Allocation

~-'The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust

- Other sponsors

Donations and income from fund raising activities

Subsidiary services and other project income

QOther income
Dividend income
Interest income

Total income

Expenditure

Employee benefit expenses
Programme expenses
Premises expenses

Other expenses

Total expenditure

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the

year

Utilisation of current year’s surplus:
Surplus/(deficit) transferred to:

- General Fund

- Capital Reserve

- Designated Funds

- Social Welfare Lump Sum Grant Reserve

- Social Welfare Provident Fund Reserve

- Social Welfare Subvention Reserve

Note

22

19
20
21
21

i1
12

13

14{a)
14(b)

15

Year ended g1st March
2017 2015
313,616,951 209,137,757
3,511,600 3,101,088
- 10,426
1,758,304 1,795,736
7,875,405 5,096,655
763,127 101,112
9,793,257 9,427,504
4,567,000 4,655,595
1,248,974 1,219,300
20,367,196 20,904,311
444,626 475,960
17,627,470 14,658,853
381,573,910 360,675,197
1,201,103 1,081,679
228,708 236,738
1,429,811 1,318,417
383,003,721 361,993,614
295,320,506 266,007,723
38,521,168 38,288,615
12,407,066 11,933,207
26,794,796 24,407,041
373,043,536 339,936,586
9,960,185 22,057,028
(534,462) 5,668,777
{710,211) (526,602)
740,133 1,768,919
5,977,614 11,848,272
018,226 1,470,879
3,568,885 1,829,783
9,960,185 22,057,028

The notes on pages 13 t0 44 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Disclaimer

The figures and financial information relating to the year ended 31 March 2017 included in the
Annnal Report for 2016-2017 are not the statutory annual financial statements of Hong Kong
Family Welfare Society for that year. Further information relating to those statutory annual
financial statements required to be disclosed in accordance with Section 436 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society will deliver those annual financial statements to the Registrar
of Companies as required by Section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to, the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society’s auditor has reported on those annual financial statements.
The zuditor’s report was unqualified; did not include a reference to any matters to which the
auditor drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying its reports; and did not contain a

statement under Section 406(2), 407(2) or {3) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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EER]E

Society Members

#HE20175F3H31H1E
As at 31% March, 2017

REES

ENE S e
BXfR S & et
BFEE

Mr. C. Besde Berc
Bryson Charitable Group
BR¥EEL L
PRIERESRE
BREREBRE
PREMFBSTE
Dr. Chan Kwong Fook
PRATESEE

B IE Ik 22t
BRAATITE
PR ELE
PR FZ L
FEmEZ+
FRETRZ+
LIBE=)-SE sgnm
RS 3R
=S EL
ERtatpk ST
BN Z L
REREER T
RaTSER L
REEKXL L
REORT
BERERXL
FZEek A
BRIFEYE
Mrs. Frederick Cooke
IEEIHRSTE
eRTEE
BB TE
AIEEFXL
HEEERL
ElRELE
Miss M. Knowles
AL Ezt
RAtRIE L
FARR%E
FEIFELE

Life Members

Mr. Au Kwong Keung

Mr. Au-yeung Wing On

Mr. Robert S. N. Baly

Mr. C. Besde Berc

Bryson Charitable Group
Miss Virginia Chan Choi Ying
Mr. Mac H.T. Chan

Mr. Chan Ka Kwun

Mr. Chan Kwok Chiu

Dr. Chan Kwong Fook

Mr. Chan Pun Lai

Miss Chan Shuen Ping

Mr. Stephen Chan Siu Yuen
Dr. Chan Wan Tung

Miss Chan Yin Ping

Mrs. Katherine Chau

Miss Frances Chen

Mrs. Betty Cheng

Prof. Frank C. Y. Cheng

Dr. Amold Cheng Cheuk Sang
Mr. Patrick Cheng

Mrs. Olivia Cheong

Mrs. Lisa Cheung Chung Lai Seung
Mrs. Irene Cheung

Mrs. Lillian Cheung

Miss Maria Cheung Wai Sum
Mrs. Chien Huang Chang Ling
Mrs. Peter Choy

Dr. Chung See Yuen

Mrs. Frederick Cooke

Mr. Fung Kwok Hing

Mr. Cameron G. Greaves
H.K. Red Swastika Society
Mrs. Ho Lee Lai Fong

Mrs. Shirley Hung

Mr. Ip Cho Yin

Miss M. Knowles

Mrs. Cecilia Kwan

Miss Anita Kwan Kam Sheung
Mr. Roger Kwan Wai Hong
Dr. Kwok Ka Cheong

BRBF =L
REF L2 L
REREXT
MR EE
BIZ ML
AAREL
WEMHZ L
25E8/\A
FRfEREE
R RE
FEBERE
FRGFL
FHLt
FYEFESRLE
FHREL

Mrs. Sydney S. W. Leong

PIEARSESE
RERTE
REHTE
PEREHLL
PEURLZ T
PRI XL
PRI STE
FEBERSE
FRIFEL
Mr. Li Lan Sang
FEEELL
FREESELL
FIEER+
Mrs. Richard Liu
BETEXL
BERLL
BRI S
BEXE/NE
BEER T
ZigESLYE
ZEREL
EHEEw L
gL
BEXA

Mr. L. C. McCormack

Mrs. Ingrid K.K. Kwok
Miss Sandy Kwong Sau Hung
Mrs. Minnie Lai

Mr. Lam Cheuk Yum

Mr. Daniel Lau

Dr. Ellen Lau

Miss Lau Wah Huen

Ms. Cecilia Lau Wing Yin
Mr. Christopher Law

Mr. James Law Sheung Ping
Mr. Lee Jark Pui

Miss Rebecca Lee

Miss Anita Y. Lee

Mr. Lee Yiu Fai

Mrs. Y. O. Lee

Mrs. Sydney S. W. Leong
Mr. Allan Leung

Mr. Anthony Leung

Mr. Donald Leung Chi Shing
Miss Elsie Leung

Miss Rita Leung

Mrs. Anna Y. L. Leung
Mr. Leung Yan Wing

Mr. Mark K. Y. Li

Dr. Eric Li Ka Cheung
Mr. Li Lan Sang

Mrs. Lillian Li

Mrs. Philomena Li

Miss Thekla Lit Kwok Yuen
Mrs. Richard Liu

Mrs. Aileen S. Lloyd
Miss Grace Lo Wai Kit
Mr. Louis H.B. Loong
Ms. Esther Ma

Miss Diana Mak

Mr. Mak Hoi Wah

Dr. Mak Ki Yan

Mrs. Agnes P.Y. Mak
Mrs. Sandra Mak

Mrs. Anne Marden

Mr. L. C. McCormack



Mr. E. K. McCray
RERESE
BERLE
REHERL
Bttt
FIiHF Z £
i:32F IR qun
BROBRL
Dr. Ton L. Quong
Mr. A. R. Reid
Mr. K. G. Sakhrani
HEREKL
mAEEzt
maER L

= e o
REENKT
B2 Rt
BrRELE
HHTTESLE
HEIBRL L
Mrs. S. F. Urquhart
T I 4REm
BERFIELZ L
HERKE
HIRERE L

B Clegun
HERXTL
BEERTL
"HESESE
Mrs. Sophia Wrangham
FAINE ST
BREELT
BERERLT
Mr. Yu Look Yau
RINERSEE

Mr. E. K. McCray

Mr. Vernon Moore

Mr. Thomas J. Mulvey
Mrs. Yvonne Ng

Mr. Robert Nield

Miss Josephine A. Philips
Mrs. D. G. Pilbrow

Mrs. May Poon

Dr. Ton L. Quong

Mr. A. R. Reid

Mr. K. G. Sakhrani

Miss S. M. Sersale

Mrs. Alison Siu Ho Cheuk Wai
Miss Sylvia W.'Y. Siu
Mr. Winston Siu Wing Yan
Miss Maria Tam

Mrs. Kitty Tang

Dr. Philip Tang

Mr. Brian H. Tisdall

Mrs. Becky Tse

Mrs. S. F. Urquhart

Rev. Paul Webb

Mrs. Jaclyn Wong Chew Li Chin
Mr. Peter H. Y. Wong

Dr. Wong Kam Chi

Miss Wong Mei Kuen
Miss Priscilla Wong

Miss Sandy H.Y. Wong
Prof. Wong Yu Cheung
Mrs. Sophia Wrangham
Mr. Jimmy Y.K. Wu

Dr. Yeung Ka Ching

Mrs. Katherine Young
Mr. Yu Look Yau

Mr. Patrick S. S. Yu
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Acknowledgement

FEOMIKERBOATEEE—FRIETAERN &

The Society would like to express its sincere thanks to the following organizations and supporters for their generosity in general

MR BB AEEE IR HE TR BLRORIHE!

donation, in donation kind, contributions sponsorships and voluntary services.

###8 Organzations

4M Industrial Development Limited

A. S. Watson Industries

Agnés b. HK Limited

Apple Daily Charitable Foundation

Atos Information Technology HK Limited
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited
BKT Group Limited

BOC Life

Carmel Leung Sing Tak School

Centaline Property Agency Limited
Chaine, Chow & Barbara Hung

Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chi Lin Nunnery

China Gas Holdings Limited

China Harbour Engineering Company Limited
Citrus Growers International

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited
Contemporary Charitable Foundation Limited
Continental Engineering Corporation
Cooperative Parenting Institute

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited

Department of Social Work and Social Administration, The
University of Hong Kong

Emax International Trademart Company Limited
Euroclear Bank Hong Kong Branch

Exclamation Limited

Fatina & Chefo

Fortress

Happy line Ltd.

Hong Kong Adventist Hospital Foundation

Hong Kong Airport Services Limited

Hong Kong Brain Foundation

Hong Kong Productivity Council

Institute of Active Ageing, Faculty of Health and Social
Sciences, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Integrity Service Limited

Investor Education Centre

Junior Chamber International Victoria (Hong Kong) Limited
KITEC Management Limited

Korchina Logistics Holdings Limited

Ladies’ Circle Hong Kong

Leo Club of Causeway Bay

Magic Clean Environmental Services Limited
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
Master Finance Company Limited

Mongkok Fa Yuen Street Public Library

MTR Corporation Limited

My Champagne

New World Department Store China Limited

Ngau Chi Wan Public Library

Nursing Department of Caritas Institute of Higher Education
NWS Holdings Charities Foundation Limited

Online Holdings Limited

Pearson Education Asia Limited

Principal Financial Group

Principal Trust Company (Asia) Limited

Rainbow Foundation

Rhema Social Services

Ricoh Hong Kong Limited

Ronald Lui & Partners H.K. Ltd.

Ropes & Gray

Rotary Club of Channel Islands

Rotary Club of Kowloon Northeast

Round Table Hong Kong

Sau Po Centre on Ageing, The University of Hong Kong
Shui On Seagull Club, SOCAM Development Limited
Sino Group

Slim Beauty

SmarTone Mobile Communications Limited

Speech Therapy Unit, Department of Chinese and Bilingual

Studies,The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Stevenson, Wong & Co.

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited

Sun Po Kong Public Library

Superpower Pumping Engineering Company Limited
Swire Travel Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited



The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints
The Community Chest of Hong Kong
The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Photographic Society of Hong Kong
TOGO Pacific Limited
United Asia Finance Limited
Van Shung Chong Holdings Limited
Verity Consulting Limited
Vogue Laundry Service Limited
Watsons Water
Women Helping Women Hong Kong Limited
Woori Bank Hong Kong Branch
RIRAS

(f5-2-8) 178
3DEELIEE
NEEHREE
KIFEE
Bt E R R ERIEH O
=L KETA—
RERERENMBENHEASE-HFHERE
BERHKEASEREAIRKPDO
WiEFREREPE
B EZ RS R
it EEtEmEHEFRe RERE D
HEEATCER R EERERIRDE
REBEMTEERFRO
ERMATXEBRAR

BARNAR (FX) g LERRRER/EEBHMFEHD

EESRE T REE
ESHHRREHE
FiatRRE
EERRABEEEWARAD
EEESUER
EETIERSE IR
FEBERRTD
AEEEERAT

R ESE RIS
Rk ERERBITE

IR &R SR

Hritt @

SR EERAT

A

5| so SR80t

{Bl A Individuals
Mr. Au Pak Ching
Ms. Annie Bu Yanan
Dr. Chan Chun Chung
Mr. Jacky Chan Hei Ching
Mr. Vod K. S. Chan
Dr. Chan Kai Yam
Mr. Paul Chan Kin Lok
Ms. Fiona Chan Kwok Shan
Ms. Beatrix Chan Pui Dik
Dr. Chan Wan Tung
Ms. May W. M. Chan
Mr. Randy Chan Yiu Leung
Mr. Eric Chau Wing Hong
Mr. Roy W. K. Cheng
Ms. Vivian Chih
Dr. Anna W. M. Choi
Mr. Chow Man Fai
Ms. Winnie W. Y. Chow
Mr. Chui Chi Shing
Ms. Mary Chung Man Wai
Ms. Jenny Fan Wai Yee
Ms. Cindy Y. Y. Fong
Mr. Peter Fu
Mrs. Elana Ho
Ms. Anna S. K. Ho
Mr. Dennis Ho Chi Kuen
Mr. Mathew Ho Chi Ming
Ms. Tabitha Ho Wai Man
Mr. Patrick M. K. Hui
Mr. Anthony J. Hung
Mr. Honic H. K. Ip
Ms. Peggy W. P. Ko
Ms. Jan Koon
Ms. Ariel Kwok Shun Kin
Dr. Lily Chuang Lai
Ms. Lily Lai Yun Yee
Dr. Lam Chi Leung
Ms. Karen Lam Suk Yan
Ms. Pearl Lam
Ms. Amy W. Y. Lam
Dr. Lau Kwok Kwong
Dr. Lau Yuk King
Mr. Roland Lau
Ms. Cecilia W. Y. Lau
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Mr. Noel Y. H. Lau

Miss Anita Lee

Ms. Virginia S. K. Lee

Ms. Virginia W. C. Lee

Mr. Douglas Tang Kwok Leung
Mr. Eddie Y. W. Leung

Ms. Shannon Leung

Mr. Steven S. L. Leung

Ms. Amy Y. K. Liu

Ms. Carina Liu Sin Kwan
Dr. Herman H. M. Lo

Mr. Francis Lok

Mr. Bryan G. T. Lung

Ms. Josephine Ma So So

Mr. Peter S. Ma

Ms. Fanny S. F. Mak

Ms. Jacqueline W. H. Mak
H. H. Judge Sharon D. Melloy
Dr. Agnes Ng Kwok Tung
Ms. H. T. Ngan

Ms. Alice Y. Y. Pang

Mr. Edward Poon

Ms. Catherine Por

Ms. Alison W. Y. Pun

Ms. Jody K. Y. Sin

Ms. Yantl S. C. Sze

Ms. Lianne Y. Y. Tai

Ms. Annie Tam, JP

Dr. Tam Woon Chi

Mr. Raymond Tang

Ms. Florence Tang Miu Fung
Ms. Ann Marie Terimni

Dr. Tong Bing Chung

Mr. Dennis Ting Koon Hung
Mr. Ken C. To

Mr. Eddie Tse

Dr. Ludwig Tsoi Chun Hing
Mr. Raymond Tsui Shiu Wah
Dr. Angela Tsun on Kee

Dr. Gloria H. Y. Wong

Dr. Gilbert Wong Kwong Hing
Mr. Charles C. L. Yang, BBS, JP
Mr. Victor C. K. Yau

Ms. Winnie Yau Mei Ling
Mr. Yim Yee King

Ms. Clara M. S. Yip

Mr. Roy Bowie Yip Wing San
Dr. Gabriel Yu Ka Kui
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We regret not being able to include the names of all individual donors and supporters. The Society would also like to extend our gratitude
to all the schools and volunteers who have assisted in our programmes and activities, and all the media for promoting our services.
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T PR AR 35 1t B4

Our Service Locations

# @B Head Office
AR FEEARI Service Index

O RERFEZRREERTS Family and Child Care Services
W FLERFEMRT Children and Youth Services

W EERILEXERT Elderly and Community Support Services
A 5RIBRTE Special Services

o AEEIILTARFSZZH School with Stationing Social Work Services
(40R RS2 R EE » SEZ2RF P.65 Please refer to P.65 for the lists of serving schools)
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Hi#R &% Contacts

[EIi¥sE

# b Website www.hkfws.org.hk @

# BB Head Office z 2527 3171

=

28612198 B hoffice@hkfws.org.hk

EBEFEEFE 1305 EEAD20482010F
Room 2010, 20/F., Southorn Centre, 130 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

E{FH¥EEE Wan Chai Office

BEREFHEHEISRAS

—
&l

2771 2306 = 2781 1072

(SRR A"

NEHERFEAEIIE

Room 1003, Duke of Windsor Social Service Building, 15 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

KiakaIRE4F Family Careline

RER R ERERT
Family and Child Care Services

1) 552ESE - LASAREREHDL
Hong Kong Eastern Centre
North Point Integrated Family Service Centre
BEILAEEESHERENE BTS2
Upper G/F., Healthy Village, Phase II, 668 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

@& 28329700 & 2893 4133
RAESE - MERERERBT O

East Kowloon Centre

Yau Tong Integrated Family Service Centre

B HEE R8Tt B EH e /EGesk

G6, Upper G/F., The Spectacle, 8 Cho Yuen Street, Yau Tong, Kowloon

@ 27752332 & 27752221
O sErsE - 5ER (B) SERERBTO

Tseung Kwan O Centre

Tseung Kwan O (South) Integrated Family Service Centre
AR EREAIE BRI T 525

Unit 2, Podium 1, Choi Ming Shopping Centre,

Kin Ming Estate, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

@ 21774321 & 2177 1616

O BESE - ERGARERESO
Kwun Tong Centre
Shun Lee Integrated Family Service Centre
SBEIER IR B AT 2SRIBFIAE B /4R
4/F., Shun Lee Estate Community Centre,
2 Shun Chi Street, Shun Lee Estate, Kowloon

@& 23422291 & 2357 4639

BEAESE - FkS (A) FERERERDD

West Kowloon Centre

Shamshuipo (West) Integrated Family Service Centre
NBEERKE TTINIB T RIS 2182045

Unit 204, 2/F., Un Him House, Un Chau Estate, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

= 2720 5131 & 2725 6621

1O mane - 28 (B) BERERBEHD
Kwai Chung Centre
Kwai Chung (South) Integrated Family Service Centre
FSRBEISUFZATIB M T 106557
106, G/F., Kwai Yan House, Kwai Fong Estate, New Territories

@ 2426 9621 & 2422 1875
€ mroERSE

Clinical Psychological Service
FREIS I ZATIEHD T 10657
106, G/F., Kwai Yan House, Kwai Fong Estate, New Territories

@& 2893 0073 & 2439 9091

15

12

o 23423110

SRERIBEH - RERERD

Zonta White House - Family Retreat Centre
FTARFIHRIHARE401080 G N B T

Ha Wong Yi Au Village, DD4010, Tai Po Road, Tai Po, New Territories

& 2650 6762 & 2638 9889
BEE% - #R (R]R) 28

Foster Care Service - New Territorties (Leung King) Centre
MATEFIRSMREEIMT23-255%

G23 - 25, G/F., Leung Chi House, Leung King Estate,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

@& 24979079 & 2436 4116

Kig$ i
Family Resource Centre

TSR TP R Rk AR TS 104 - 106557
104 - 106, G/F., Tip Yee House, Butterfly Estate, Tuen Mun, New Territories

& 2465 6868 = 2466 3672

BELERRERF
Children and Youth Services

*

2 ¢

2

)

EEAERSE

Hong Kong Western Centre

ERTERE—H0RATE

Western Garden, 80A, First Street, Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong

& 2549 5106 = 2858 4794
EERRERESHERTEY

Artiste Training Alumni Association

Jockey Club Tseung Kwan O Youth Square

MR ERERSEE SR T

G/F., Carpark Block, Tong Ming Court, Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

@ 21774567 S 2177 4400

BAE ($HA) 28

East Kowloon (Ngau Tau Kok) Centre

T A LERIPRIERIMT 141 - 15057

141 - 150, G/F., Chin Wah House, Lok Wah South Estate, Kowloon

m 2798 8411 & 2756 4948

R (%R 29

New Territories (Kwai Shing) Centre
FSRSORE TR IBE 10E I T 123 - 12858

Unit 123 - 128, G/F., Block 10, Kwai Shing West Estate,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

@ 2419 7830 & 2419 7820



RERTEZIERT
Elderly and Community Support Services
& (LR) 78
Hong Kong (Sheung Wan) Centre
EBZRFET8] - 183 AT RIS EEEIM T
G/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 - 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

® 25463332 & 2167 8987

62y - deAHhD

Viva - North Point Centre

BB ABER2105 T

G/F., 210 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong

@ 25613362 & 2561 3315

& www.vivahkfws.com

EEHE (BR) 29

Hong Kong Eastern (Oi Tung) Centre
EEGEATRRESEIZI01E

Unit 101, 1/F., Oi Sin House, Oi Tung Estate, Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong

& 2564 7555 = 2564 7486

SERSE

Tseung Kwan O Centre
BRI AES 15T A 15

Unit 1, Podium 1, Choi Ming Shopping Centre, Kin Ming Estate,
Tseung Kwan O, New Territories

& 2791 7230 = 2791 0091
BAE (IBF)) 5E

East Kowloon (Shun Lee) Centre
NEEIER IR Z 348 (A ) 10- 1157
Unit 10 - 11, F3 (Podium Floor), Lee Foo House, Shun Lee Estate, Kowloon

& 2798 8189 = 23453781
Y - BRI D

Viva - Shun Lee Centre
NEIBFIFZE31E (FE) 2358
Unit 23, F3 (Podium Floor), Lee Foo House, Shun Lee Estate, Kowloon

® 21747737 & 23453781

BHAE (IBR) 4F

East Kowloon (Shun On) Centre

NBEIRR LR IEM T 1 - 4529 - 1258

1-4&9-12,G/F., On Yat House, Shun On Estate, Kowloon
@ 2793 1670 & 2763 6008

BAE ($5HA) 28

East Kowloon (Ngau Tau Kok) Centre

NBEF TR LR IRRIEBID T 141 - 15058

141 - 150, G/F., Chin Wah House, Lok Wah South Estate, Kowloon

& 2796 4880 = 2756 4948
(FLEEH) REHTD

Senior Citizen Centre (Kowloon City)

TUEEL IVE LBEHIESS - 615 R EEE SR 2EE 148

1/F., Block 2, Harmony Garden, 55 - 61 Kowloon City Road, To Kwa Wan, Kowloon
@ 27112488 & 27110925

ELE (BFE) 28

West Kowloon (Lai Kok) Centre

NEEFKS R IR 12 12958 T

Unit 129, Lai Kuk House, Lai Kok Estate, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

@ 2361 8212 & 2728 7340

LR (BE) 28

West Kowloon (Lai Huen) Centre

NEERKS RIS 102581 T

Unit 102, Lai Huen House, Lai Kok Estate, Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

& 2350 0955 = 2793 1680
R (%%5) 28

New Territories (Kwai Fong) Centre
MRS IPZATBU T 10655
106, G/F., Kwai Yan House, Kwai Fong Estate, New Territories

& 2426 9666 = 27762131

gy - EHD

Viva - Cho Yiu Centre

RSB IBAEZZHERE 142101 - 10655

101 - 106, 1/F, Block E, Cho Yiu Centre, Cho Yiu Chuen, Kwai Chung, New Territories
@ 2742 8900 & 2742 8077

R (KEO) 5F

New Territories (Tai Wo Hau) Centre

MAREBABOWELEFE114 - 11557

Unit 114 - 115, Podium Floor, Fu On House, Tai Wo Hau Estate, Kwai Chung, New Territories

@ 24369062 & 2776 6839

HR (gL) 2E

New Territories (Cheung Shan) Centre

FREERILIRFS LZHT27 - 30518

27 - 30, G/F., Sau Shan House, Cheung Shan Estate, Tsuen Wan, New Territories
& 24113052 & 2413 1497

R (RT) 28

New Territories (Cheung Hang) Centre

FARASKRFTUTEEMT

G/F., Hang Yip House, Cheung Hang Estate, Tsing Yi, New Territories

& 24369090 & 2436 3661

FR (FiE) 7€

New Territories (Tivoli) Centre

FRBKEWIETSR B EE 1 T

G/F., Block 1, Tivoli Garden, 75 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi, New Territories
@ 2436 1413 & 2495 0790

Kl (K#) 5g

Lantau (Tai O) Centre

KU AREE A IBAHEREE 154 T
Unit 1, G/F., Kindergarten Block, Lung Tin Estate, Tai O, Lantau Island

& 29855797 & 29856817

BB EERP O

Rotary Club of Channel Islands Health Centre
RIBLARRERBRERI01=

Room 101, Tin Fu House, Lung Tin Estate, Tai O, Lantau Island
& 29855797 & 29856817

Kl (18%) 28

Lantau (Mui Wo) Centre

RIS EIRETIR A 102573 T

Room 102, G/F., Ngan Yat House, Ngan Wan Estate, Mui Wo, Lantau Island
@ 2984 7920 & 2984 9532

FMAE

Peng Chau Centre

PPN ST IR AN 1 0B ™

N10B, G/F., Kam Peng House, Kam Peng Estate, Peng Chau

& 25597773 & 2983 9967

RMNAYE

Cheung Chau Centre

RINREMREENT 101 - 10357

101 - 103, G/F., Cheung Kwong House, Cheung Kwai Estate, Cheung Chau

@ 2986 8616 & 2981 3555
mYBRE

Lamma Centre
Y SRABERE31RAN TBE
Block B, G/F., 31 A Main Street, Yung Shue Wan, Lamma Island

@ 29824411 529821144
45 Bl R 75
Special Services

A 2 AszERS

Wellness Programme
FROERE—H0RATE
Western Garden, 80A First Street, Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong

&= 27711891 & 28110806
& www.wellnesshk.com
A B
Mediation Centre
EBTERE—HR0RATE
Western Garden, 80A First Street, Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong
@ 25619229 & 2811 0806
& www.mediationcentrehk.org
A BERFERESD

Women and Family Enhancement Centre
EESHEERRIMBERCELT

G/F., Wing C, Yiu Kwai House, Yiu Tung Estate,
Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong

@ 28115244 & 29600125
A #wE

Parent-child Contact Centre
NBEZ BB S 09 #1906F
Unit 1906, 19/F., Laford Centre, 838 Lai Chi Kok Road, Kowloon
@ 81008883 & 2743 5833
A BREESD

Financial Education Centre

NEERDEESIRRIDEESE _HI5E501BE

Unit 501B, 5/F, Tower II, Cheung Sha Wan Plaza, 833 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon
& 3950 1900 & 39501901

& www.fechk.org 139



EXHEM BINEEERERE r HEMELE -
Please support us to foster a caring community.
$8FK 73 iE Methods of donation

z Iﬂ_fhﬂ ull.. . N [ESES] i
Lo EEEMRRERE . 004-002-1-441464 (EEEERTT HSBC)
Deposit into bank A/C
2. BEFERETRE (R ERARERNE) 3 FRAEFHEFEI30REEH/02082010F
OR Mail a crossed cheque made payable to “HONG KONG FAMILY WELFARE SOCIETY” to:
Room 2010, 20/F., Southorn Centre, 130 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

3. BEREEL - +—EHE (FEMEERBATEERERNE)

OR Make cash donation via any 7-Eleven outlets
(Please inform the store assistant that you want to donate to Hong Kong Family Welfare Society)

FEEE Enquiry: (852) 2527 3171

EHFEHEMEE - ERRITERNE | SRR /| € - +—EFERRHEE
BEAEFRERMNE
AR EFEHEFE130REEFRO20182010=

Please send this form together with bank deposit slip / crossed cheque / receipt issued by 7-Eleven to:

Hong Kong Family Welfare Society
Room 2010, 20/F., Southorn Centre, 130 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FEFX[EI{R Donation Reply Slip

IBFAEE )l Donor’s Information
HBFE | ¥R Name of Donor / Organization :

B%& A Contact Person :

B8 EEE Contact No. : {2 HE Fax/E# Email :

B bt Address :

ZE EH1E Target Beneficiaries

B BERE - RE B -FLEREREF -

Included: deprived families, elders, women, youth and children, etc.

}{5FXE &8 Donation Amount: $

IRFT £ Attach: O $R1TTEFXULHE Bank deposit slip
O 23 Z Crossed cheque (2 Z 58S cheque no. )
O € - +—FEFEHEFULIE Receipt issued by 7-Eleven

;E %ﬂ”ﬁﬂg O KA /BT FEUIE 1/ We do NOT need an official receipt
Donation Receipt: O ZFFEUIEER Lkttt E At

Please send me an official receipt to the above address or other address:

(FRFESRE MR E - BREESEEUTIE © No receipt will be issued if name or address is not provided).
Ff$5F Remarks:
1. BEEEz O WEL v Bt IE F#EEER Please indicate the appropriate [1 with ¢ and fill in the blank when appropriate.
2. IBFNEGEAM 1007t Ll L AR EREEHIAIRIE
Total donation in money terms exceeds HK$100 would be issued an official receipt, your contributions are tax-deductible.
ABEE (EAER (FEE) E6) HEREREHER  BUREBERNEN B THAFRENEAER  REAERBRBEERBERM
BzH o HNE « FRANERENGEMNEH @ AIHEES -

The Society has developed policies and practice guide to ensure compliance with the obligation under the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and to protect the
privacy of your data. The personal data you provide will only be used for the purposes of handling donations and issuing receipts. Any enquiries concerning data

collection, usage and access, please contact our Society. ]

140 3B FRZRAGIR I A HE_E T &L This donation form can also be downloaded from website: www.hkfws.org.hk El'}



=R
=58 $ aB

MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION FORM
ENMARABAEEE » IHHMAOIE-

Please support our Society’s work by becoming a Registered Member.

Please put a tick v on the appropriate box(es) ‘

EETEEEE

Ordinary membership fee

REIBSEE . 4161,000

Life membership fee

AANHEERERBNETERBELAZZ2MAA O~&E/ OFBFEEE -

[ am interested in the Society’s work and I wish to apply for [ILife/ [JOrdinary membership.
A #£ 4% Name in Chinese : o2
H P Name in English p 32

. HK$100 (B per annum)

2
=111

8 Title :

2
=111

8 Title :

{1t Home Address :

{F=EEEE Home Tel No :

FIRESE Mobile No. : TEFHEEE E-mail Address :

AT EERERMERCHNEFBHMIMERBEBNCH (BEREREGERSBNNUBREE)
O RE/OARERER /O RNER (B0 28 EEBHbI)

Please indicate if you consent that we will use your email address for future communication (including sending to you notice of General Meetings and financial statements, etc.)

O Consent /O Not Consent / O Not Applicable (e.g. do not have email address)

T {E##8 &8 Name of Organization :

BEAI Job Title : T {E&BFY Department :

B% / B Occupation / Profession :

T {EHh3it Office Address :

A RIEEE Office Tel No. : {EE RS Fax No. :

Correspondence Address: [0 Same as Home Address / O Same as Office Address / O Others (please specify):

I EMEEE S 555578 Membership of other Societies / Organizations (if any) :

$2% A Nominated by (in block letters) :

f#E - EEHE, DARAEEERS  UEHTEEEEE -
Remark: Membership application must be proposed by a Registered Member of the Society and approved by the Executive Committee.

AANORE/O0ARE /O NEH
BEERERNSERAAL CREMNERERERBRERREN / HEEEE R - B8N  tSREIEDEE / MERIAERERAR -
10 AGREE/O DISAGREE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society to use my personal contact data provided above for direct marketing / promotion of social service

and relevant activities, event invitation and fundraising.

EAZE A 25 % Signature of Applicant : HHA Date:

AR HARIER - FEERBTEEFFE 305 EEF/02082010F
Please return the application form to Room 2010, 20/F., Southorn Centre, 130 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FEEE ( EAEH @B &6 ) SIEREREBENR @ IMRERNEN - B TOASRMANEAEN  BELEHEERFASERARATH
AR o ASRME TRBHRENEEMNE - FUSEBRHNAE - IHIE « FRASERENEENEN - AIBHEEE -

The Society has developed policies and practice guide to ensure compliance with the obligation under the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and to protect the privacy
of your data. The personal data you provide will be used for the purposes of handling membership application and our contact with member. In future, if you have any
change of your contact information, please inform us by mail to the above address. Any enquiries concerning data collection, usage and access, please contact our Society.
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RESEFERER

Enrollment Form for Partnership

HEHB Date :
48 /B 88 & 8 Name of Organization :
Bi##& A Name of Contact Person :
ZBF9 Department : B Title :

ik Address :

BT HS /{8 E Email /Fax :

Bt#&EEE Contact Tel. No :

B{ER X Format of Partnership
GERMES O WD ¢ I A]EEZIF Please tick your option, more than one is acceptable)

& L BRT% 2. EEnEKEHED 3. REEEIE

Volunteer Service Sponsorship Partnership
a. ¥}% Clientele (Target) O a BHIEBH O a ZERFETEEE

(RIS 8 more than one is acceptable) Cash Donation Participation in services
O £& Elders
O BEZE Children
O F2 & Youth O b ME/ ERIEHE
O ESFHFE Single Parent Families Donation In-kind e
O #iFEHBZREE New Amival Families 0b %m’_ﬁb o
O 3325 Deprived Families Organize activities
O %E?E Abused Families O c. E&“ﬁ%%’ﬂ%ﬁﬁk’&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
O {E{A%ER No Preference Set up donation boxes or
O Hfth Others (3558 please specify) Charity sales project

O c ARIiLER
3 N Set-up of designated fund

b. %—Ihkﬁ No. o.fVolunteers O 4 BEHAL  HEEEs)

(8K for each time) Sponsorship of charity events
O 45%15A (Less than 15) .. .

- or fundraising activities

O 15 A8LLE (More than 15)
O RBRMIE (As required) O d. EHfth Others (355385 please specify)
.. BESEETRERMNET O e BXEMH /KilfEE

Will encourage staff’s families Mentorship on

. professional expertise

to participate
O & Yes
O 4& No

R RARBBEET (852) 2861 2198 L EEHZ hoffice@hkfws.org.hk EHBE | 005125073171
Please return the enrollment form via Fax: (852) 2861 2198 or email to hoffice@hkfws.org.hk Enquiry ° (852)
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